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(On record)

CHAIRMAN MAC NEILLE: I'm going to call to order the

House Subcommittee of the Select Committee on Legislative 

Ethics. And we're here today —  our order of business is the 

h earing on formal charges in Case H96-02, the charges against 

Representative Jerry Sanders. Present are members of the 

Committee Shirley McCoy, Representative Toohey, Joe Donahue, 

myself, Margie Mac Neille, Ed Granger, Edith Vorderstrasse.

We have retained Hearing Officer Michael White to run 

the hearing for us and with that, I'll turn it over to him.

HEARING OFFICER: As the Chairman indicated, it's the

time set for the hearing for —  I haven't spoken to any of the 

Legislators before about the hearing other than a brief public 

teleconference —  I said Legislators, I meant members of the 

Committee. As I'm sure you all know, your rules provide thac 

you are the ultimate decision makers in this case. I will be 

m ak i n g  rulings on objections, if there are any, on the 

admissibility of evidence. But the parties have a right to 

have you overrule me on anything and don't hesitate to do that 

if there's somethincr you want to hear. I'll be making my 

rulings as best I can on the rules of evidence. There m a y  be 

things that you want to hear that may not fall within the 

formal rules of evidence and you have a right to say that and 

speak up. After each of the attorneys ask questions of the
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witnesses, you have the opportunity to ask questions if you'd 

like. You are the decision makers in this case and you need to 

be satisfied that you get the information that you want. Are 

the parties ready to proceed.

MR. SPAAN: We are Mr. White.

MR. SYREN: Yes, Your Honor.

HEARING OFFICER: At this point I give each of the

parties, beginning with the Committee an opportunity to give a 

brief opening statement as to what you intend to present as 

evidence.

MR. SPAAN: Thank you. Mr. White, on behalf of the

Committee I'd like to say Hi to you all, Madam Chairman, 

members of the Committee, Mr. White and Mr. Syren. The facts 

of this case are not particularly complicated. On January 

29th, 1996, the Republicem party held a straw poll, at which 

time party members attended and cast a vote, acknowledged their
I

preference for the Republican Presidential candidate. This 

event was enormously successful, more than 5,000 people in the 

Anchorage area participated in the straw poll. The straw poll 

—  at each straw poll that was held in different districts, 

they kept a sign-in sheet where people who participated could 

put their name and address. Those straw poll sign-in sheets 

were made available to party officials, if party officials 

wanted the straw polls.

Around March 14th, 1996, Representative Sanders had
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1 | prepared and mailed a letter to all the Republican participants 

2 | in the straw poll for his district which was District 19, I

3 II believe. In this letter he thanked the participants for

4 partici p a t i n g  in the straw poll. The letters —  at least the

5 letter that we have reviewed went out on March 5th, the say

6 after the letter was prepared. The evidence that the Committee

7 will put forward will show that the letter was on

8 I Represen t a t i v e  Sanders' economic development committee

9 stationary. That the letter was marked official business.

10 That over 230 letters were sent. That there was a $76.48

11 charge to Representative Sanders mailroom account on March 5th,

12 I wh i c h  we believe were the letters that were mailed. The

13 evidence will show that a State computer was used. And the

14 evidence will show that Representative Sanders' employees

151 p a rticipated during a normal work week. In fact, the evidence

16 I will show that the last modification made on the State computer

17 |i was at 10:43 a.m. on March 4th and that doesn't take into

18 j account stuffing the letters into the envelopes, taking them to

19 the mailr o o m  or whatever else needed to be done. We have run

20 I an independent test that was similar to this task and it took

21 approximately six hours of work from start to finish to

22 |J complete the task.

23 || The charges the Committee brought were brought on

24 | September 24th where this Committee found probable cause to

25 I bring formal charges. And again, the standard to find

R S R C  0 U R T R E P O R T E R  S

810 N STREET
277-0572/Fax 274-8982

1007 UEST THIRD AVENUE
272-7515

ANCHORAGE, ALASKA 99501



J

2

3

4

5

6

7

8 

9

1 0

1 1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

2 0  

2 1  

2 2

23

24 

25

1 R epresentative Sanders violated this is different than probable 

cause, it's clear and convincing evidence, we could talk about 

that later. All three of the charges flow from the sane letter 

that went out to the Republicans who participated in the polls. 

So that's what this case is about.

The first charge charges Representative Sanders with 

using public funds, facilities, equipment, services or other 

government assets or resources for a nongovernmental purpose or 

for his private benefit by m a i ling the letter. The second 

charge, as I said, involves the same letter. It charges 

Representative Sanders with using or authorizing State funds, 

facilities, equipment, services or another government asset or 

resources for the purpose of political fundraising or 

campaigning by producing this letter and mailing it. The third 

charge ir the same letter, it charges Representative Sanders 

with requiring an employee to assist in political party or 

candidate activities, campaigning or fundraising while on 

government time by requiring a Legislative employee to perform 

duties related to the production and the mailing of this 

letter.

Now, when the evidence comes in and when you question 

the witnesses, you should be reminded that there is an 

exception to charges one and two and that exception is the 

nominal use exception. And it would say that these acts, even 

if you found they occurred, were not chargeable or
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1 | Representative Sanders shouldn't be found in violation if a

2 I limited use of State property and resources for personal

3 | purposes if it was only a limited use. And if the use does not

4 I interfere with the performance of public duties and the cost of

5 the value related to the use, it's nominal. There is no

6 similar exception to charge number three. The case, you'll

7 see, a different twist because at least a portion of the State

8 resources used were out of Representative Sanders Legislative

9 office account. And Representative Toohey would understand

10 that, but we're going to present some evidence on what exactly

11 this account is, what options are available to Legislators and

12 w h a t  restrictions, if any, are placed on them.

13 I You'll hear testimony from Karla Schofield who is an

14 employee of the LAA, who will explain about non-accountable

15 accounts and accountable accounts and the difference. You will

16 I h e a r  that with a non-accountable account, a Legislator could

17 take all the money, which is $6,000, there is deductions for

18 I taxes and other deductions and use it for, I guess, whatever

19 purpose they want. For an accountable account, the rules

20 I require to use it for a business purpose and that is, where the

21 | Legislator could direct that certain vendors or expenses be

22 I paid. There's no real policing over it other than the good

23 faith and the good will of the Legislator involved. So there

24 are no deductions from those accounts for taxes. It is to be

25 | used for business purposes.
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You will also hear testimony regarding the Legislative 

postage meter and how that fits in. You'll also hear testimony 

about the cooperation or I should say the lack of cooperation 

of Representative Sanders. You'll hear that at his deposition 

when the Committee attempted to find out his view of the facts, 

that he invoked the Fifth x\mendment against self incrimination, 

as did one of his employees. And I'd like you to caution you 

that the Fifth Amendment against self incrimination is a very, 

very important Constitutional right, but should only be invoked 

if you have a fear of criminal charges or evidence which could 

lead to criminal charges. The fact that you don't want to 

testify, yoa don't want to cooperate is not a good reason to 

invoke the Fifth Amendment unless there's some concern. And if 

there is concern, an individual has the absolute right to 

invoke the Fifth Amendment even in a civil case. This is an 

important case because what the Committee decides today or 

tomorrow is going to be looked at by the people in the State 

Legislature and the public as guidance in this area, which is a 

tricky area.

As you hear the evi jnce, I'd like to ask you to pay 

particular attention on the three key issues, at least, the 

issues I see and the Committee may see it differently. Was 

there use of government resources? What was the purpose of the 

March 4th letter. And does the nominal use exception apply to 

charges one and two.
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Thank you very much, Mr. White and members of th« 

Committee.

HEARING OFFICER: One thing I perhaps should have told

the Committee before Mr. Spaan's opening statement is that the 

Committee needs to rely on the testimony of witnesses in terms 

of finding the facts that you're going to find. The opening 

statements and arguments at the end of the case by the 

attorneys are often helpful in terms of putting everything in 

context. But it's what the witnesses say when they're under 

oath that you need to base your decision on.

Mr. Syren, would you like to give an opening statement

now?

MR. SYREN: Your Honor, actually I would like to

reserve my time allotted for opening and apply it to my time 

for closing.

HEARING OFFICER: That's fine. Is there any objection?

MR. SPAAN: No. Fine. We're going to call Karla

Schofield as the Committee's first witness when Ms. Barnett is 

done.

HEARING OFFICER: Would you please remain standing to

be sworn in. Would you raise your right hand, please.

(Oath administered)

MS. SCHOFIELD: Yes, I do.

HEARING OFFICER: Please be seated.

KARLA SCHOFIELD
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called as a witness on behalf of the Committee, testified as 

follows on:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

4 HEARING OFFICER: Would you state your full name,

5 please?
♦

6 A My name is Karla Schofield.

7 HEARING OFFICER: Would you spell your last name,

8 please?

9 A It's S-c-h-o-f-i-e-l-d.

10 HEARING OFFICER: And what's your mailing address?

11 A 130 Seward Street, Suite 313, Juneau, Alaska.

12 HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. You may proceed Mr.

13 | Spaan.

14 i MR. SPAAN: Thank you, Mr. White.

15 BY MR. SPAAN:

16 I Q Ms. Schofield, where are you currently employed?

17 A In Juneau, Alaska.

18 | Q And how long —  or who are you employed by, I'm sorry?

19 j A I am employed by the Legislative Affairs Agency.

20 Q And could you explain to me what the Legislative

21 Affairs Agency is?

22 I A The Legislative Affairs Agency is the administrative

23 services organization for the Legislature. And we're

24 responsible for, under the auspices of the Legislative

25 Council, for providing service of —  payroll services,
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procurement services, we have Legislative information 

offices that are located around the State, computer 

services for the Legislature.

And Ms. Schofield, what is your position within the 

LAA?

I'm the deputy director for administrative services. 

And what does that include?

For the most part it includes accounting services and 

in the absence of the executive director, I handle 

things for her.

Sure. And how long have you been employed with the 

LAA?

Since December of 1982.

Okay. Are you, in the course of your duties, Ms. 

Schofield, familiar with the Legislative office 

accounts?

Yes, I am.

And what is the purpose of the account?

The purpose of the account is for postage, stenographic 

services, office expenses and other expenses. And each 

Legislator's entitled to a Legislative allowance 

account and they receive it each year.

And are there different ways that a Legislature could 

-- are there different sorts of accounts?

Yes. There's two different accounts. Different types

R & R C O U R T  R E P O R T E R S
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of ways a Legislature could elect to take their 

allowance account, they can take it as an accountable 

allowance account which means that they would send into 

the accounting office business expenses that they had 

in the course of their duties as a Legislator and those 

bills would be paid. The non-accountable plan is when 

the Legislator elects to take the $6,000 allowance or 

any port:on of it as income and that is run through the 

payroll system and taxes and withholding are taken from 

that check.

If I could just stop you for a second. That is the 

non-accountable plan then?

The non-accountable plan, yes.

And does that —  would that money be reported as income 

to the individual Legislator who took it?

Yes. It's included as income on their W-2.

Okay. And what amount of money are we talking about in 

the office account?

We are talking about $6,000.

Okay. Has it always been $6,000?

No, it hasn't. Up until two years ago it was $4,000. 

Does the —  is trere a definition within any applicable
|

statute to what the monies should be used for?

Title 24 has the definition of what the Legislative 

expenses are for.
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Q And what is that?

A  And it's fairly broad and I would need to read it

directly. But it is what —  basically stenographic, 

office expenses and other expenses of a Legislator.

Q Ms. Schofield, I'm going to hand you what's been marked

as Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 and ask you if you could 

identify that document?

A  This is a letter to —  from m e ....

Q Could you stop for a second, I'm sorry, Ms. Schofield.

HEARING OFFICER: I'll inform the members of the

Committee that they're not in the packets that you've received 

yet. If it is admitted as evidence you all will have access to 

those.

Q

A

Q

A

Okay. Could you identify Exhibit 1, please?

Okay. This is a letter from me to Susie Barnett and 

it's dated October 16th. And it includes —  what it 

includes are pages from the Legislator's —  the guide 

for Legislator's staff and Legislators on business 

expense allowances, which is a book that we gave to 

Legislators at the beginning of this Legislative 

session.

Okay.

It also includes a copy of the annual allowance option 

form which is what Legislators fill-out to tell us 

which way they'd like to take their office allowance
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1 account. The next item is a form Legislators use to 

submit expenses to the accounting office. And the next 

.Item is an information sheet that Legislators who take 

the accountable allowance account receive with their 

packet. And the next item is also from our guide for 

Legislators and staff that talks about the personal 

postage accounts which Legislators are allowed to setup 

in our Juneau mailroom.

) And these are information that is available to

Legislators?

i Yes. Any of the items from the guide for Legislators

and staff were in the book that was delivered in 

January to Legislative offices. And the items that are 

just for people who choose the accountable allowance 

account are given to them when they choose that 

account.

MR. SPAAN: Mr. White, we'd move Exhibit 1.

HEARING OFFICER: Is there any objection, Mr. Syren?

MR. SYREN: No.

HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Exhibit 1 will be admitted.

( C o m m i t t e e ' s  E x h i b i t  1 a d m i t t e d )  

HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Spaan, do you have copies for the

Committee so they c o u l d .....

MR. SPAAN: I do for the Committee, Mr. White, and I

don't know how you want to handle this.
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1 HEARING OFFICER: Why don't you, if you would, pass

2 them out to the Committee so they could be looking over them

3 during the testimony.

4 MR. SPAAN: Ms. Barnett, would you have time to assist?

5 MS. BARNETT: I'd be happy to.

6 MR. SPAAN: Just Exhibit 1 and what I have is a —  all

7 these are separate packages is the problem.

8 | MS. BARNETT: I see.

9 j MR. SPAAN: Mr. White, I'd request just a moment. I

10 ! think it might be easier for the Committee if they had this

11 ! document in front of them when I question Ms. Schofield. Mr.

12 i White, I apologize to you and the Committee. After the lunch

13 I break we'll have them organized in a more realistic pile.

14 BY MR. SPAAN:

15 Q Thank you, Ms. Schofield, I'm sorry for the

16 interruption. In this document, does it distinguish

17 between business and personal expenses?

18 A Expenses are the normal and current cost of carrying on

19 a trade or profession. When you have an accountable

20 allowance account, you need to have a business expense

21 —  a business connection to the expense and you need to

22 have substantiation which means that we would get the

23 —  we would have invoices for the expenses that

24 Legislators submitted.

25 Q Okay. And who, in the LAA makes the determination
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whether or not an expense is a business expense and 

will be paid?

The Legislators are informed in their informational 

sheet which is included in this package that business 

expenses are what they should be submitting and that 

personal —  it's up to them to tell it —  to tell us if 

it's a personal expense or not or not submit the 

personal expense or what portion was it.

What if an expense is, as many are, part business and 

part personal, is there any guidance to the 

Legislators?

The part that they should turn in to us is the business 

portion of it. They could turn in the whole receipt if 

they wanted to and only ask us to pay the business 

portion of it.

And who could direct an expense or a invoice to be 

paid?

The Legislator.

Can he or she delegate that authority?

Yes. In fact, many Legislators delegate that authority 

to a member of their staff. And when they do that they 

send us a memo that tells us that that staff person is 

authorized to sign on their account.

Okay. And who —  how long does it take before you get 

paid or when an invoice is paid?
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That, can vary. But I would say most invoices are paid 

between three and five days.

May a Legislator pay for an expense and then would the 

a ppropriate documentation submitted to the LAA and 

asked to be reimbursed?

Yes. A  Legislator could incur the expense and pay the 

bill and then submit that bill to us to reimburse the 

Legislator.

I'm going to hand you, Ms. Schofield, what's been 

marked as Exhibit 2 and ask if you could identify this 

document?

Yes. This is a docu —  this is a letter from Pam Varni J 

who is the executive director of our agency. And when 

she —  this memo goes out before session begins and 

explains that a business —  accountable —  it explains 

that they have the option of choosing the non- 

accountable or accountable allowance and this —  this 

says in this letter t h a t .....

Why don't you —  before you tell me what it s a y s .....

MR. SPAAN: I'd move Exhibit 2, Mr. White.

HEARING OFFICER: Is there any objection?

MR. SYREN: No objection.

HEARING OFFICER: Exhibit 2 will be admitted.

(Committee's Exhibit 2 admitted) 

Okay, go ahead. Why don't you explain what Exhibit 2
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Q

A

Q

Okay. What Exhibit 2 says, it explains how that they 

can either —  if they take it as a non-accountable plan 

that they'll be withholding from that check. And it 

says if you take it a an accountable plan, it talks 

about that business expenses meet the re —  has to meet 

the three requirements of a business connection, 

s u bstantiation and returning amounts that are in excess 

of expenses.

What does returning amounts in excess of expenses mean? 

Well, it actually doesn't —  we don't get into that 

very much. But some people, when they run a business 

expense allowance might give people an advance —  and 

let them, like a petty cash account or something. And 

then if the receipts that they turned in later didn't 

add up to the petty cash account, then they would have 

to turn in the difference, but we don't use that one 

because we're just reimbursing expenses.

Can one of these accountable type of accounts be 

carried over to a subsequent or a later Legislative 

year?

We run —  we administer the accountable allowance 

ac c ounts on a yearly basis. And if there's money 

leftover in the account in December, that amount that's 

leftover is put on a person's final paycheck.
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Can a Legislator put —  or add to the $6,000 by putting 

campaign funds, for instance, in it?

No. They can't add money to the allowance accounts. 

It's a set amount of money.

From any source?

From any source.

Okay. Ms. Schofield, I'm going to hand you what's been 

mar k e d  as Exhibit 3 and ask you to identify that 

document.

Exhibit 3 are the Legislative Council minutes from 

N o v ember 9th through 10th, 1990.

Okay.

A n d .....

Is the Legislative accounts discussed in this document? 

Yes, it is. Prior to this t i m e .....

Wait a minute, I'm sorry. I do apologize. The proper 

way is I will now move to introduce Exhibit 3, if it's 

introduced I will ask you to briefly describe it.

MR. SYREN: No objection.

H E A RING OFFICER: Exhibit 3 will be admitted.

(Committee's Exhibit 3 admitted)

MR. SPAAN: Thank you.

Ms. Schofield, why don't you briefly tell the members 

of the Committee where this fits in the Legislative 

office account?
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1 Prior to this time Legislators received the office 

allowance account in one lump sum and they didn't have 

an option to choose either accountable or non- 

accountable. At this meeting, the Legislative Council 

di s cussed that —  which way Legislators should take the 

office allowance account and decided that Legislators 

could decide for themselves whether they wanted an 

accountable plan or non-accountable plan.

Okay. Now, if I took a non-accountable plan and 

perhaps I asked you this and if I did, I apologize, 

would that amount be reported to the IRS as income to 

the individual Legislator?

A non-accountable plan is that —  any amount that was 

taken as a non-accountable plan would be on the W- —  

wo u l d  be reported on the W-2 at the end of the year.

Is a postage account available to the members ol the 

Legislator —  the State Legislator?

Yes, it is. There's a postage account available to 

them in the mail —  Juneau mailroom. And Legislators 

can put a deposit into that account and run postage 

through the Legislative Affairs Agency and we'll deduct 

the postage from the deposit that they placed in the 

mailroom.

Okay. Now, is there a separate —  how is this account 

paid for?
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Legislator —  well, Legislators could pay by personal 

check or Legislators could have money transferred from 

their Legislative allowance account to their Juneau 

mailroom account.

So it could be a personal check or from the office 

allowance?

(Witness nods affirmatively)

Okay. Is there any other postage available to a member 

of the Legislature or do you pay for your own, either 

under the Legislative office account or your personal 

funds?

Legislative committees often have a budget for 

committee postage.

And that would be different. Can you use a postage 

meter —  is there somebody —  are there any 

restrictions on what this postage meter can be used 

for?

We don't actually see what's in the envelopes. If the 

Legislator is putting something through their mailroom 

account. The —  so really what we do is keep track of 

how much postage they've used and then we —  they're 

billed for that amount.

And who keeps track of that Ms. Schofield?

Suzi Ronsi who is our mailroom clerk in Juneau.

And then can you incur a bill or do you deposit monies
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to keep ahead of the amount y o u .....

A When Suzi sees that someone is getting low on their

postage account, she will notify them that they need to 

make another deposit.

2 Okay. Ms. Schofield, I'm going to hand you what's been

mar k e d  as Exhibit 4 and ask you to identify —  it's a 

two-page exhibit and ask you to identify this document. 

A  This document is the option form that Representative

Sanders filled out in the beginning of this session and 

it's also a record of the expenses that were processed 

through that allowance account.

MR. SPAAN: I move Exhibit 4.

MR. SYREN: No objection.

H EARING OFFICER: Without objection, 4 will be

admitted.

(Committee's Exhibit 4 admitted)

Q Ms. Schofield, does Exhibit 4 indicate how

Representative Sanders, what plan he chose?

A  Representative Sanders chose the accountable plan.

Q Okay. And that's the one where no taxes are ded’- ted?

A  That's no taxes where they submit receipts to th'

accounting office and they are paid.

Q  Does Page 2 of this document, Ms. Schofield, indicate

whether Representative Sanders made any payments to his 

mail account from his office allowance?
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1 A Yes, it does.

2 MR. SYREN: I'll object at this point. I'm not sure

3 she's testifying on personal knowledge about a payment she saw

4 RepresenLaLive Sanders make or whether or not this record would

5 reflect that. And to the extent it's outside the scope of her

6 knowledge, that's my objection, foundational objection, Your

7 H o n o r .

8 HEARING OFFICER: Why don't you lay a better foundation

9 first. I think she'd be allowed to testify off the form as

10 long as it's c l e a r ......

11 MR. SPAAN: Okay. Right.

12 HEARING OFFICER:  what the basis of her testimony

13 is.

14 i Q Does the form indicate, Ms. Schofield, whether or not

15 there were any payments made to the postal fund from

16 Representative Sanders' Legislative allowance?

17 MR. SYREN: And same objection, Your Honor.

18 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Essentially I'll explain to

19 the Committee, the objection made is that the witness doesn't

20 have personal knowledge about what she's about to testify to.

21 In a court proceeding, it probably would not be —  or it may or 

\22 may not be admissible depending on whether a sufficient basis 

23 to establish that the record is a business record and kept in a 

^4 regular course of business. I will allow the testimony. Mr.

25 Syren will have an opportunity to cross examine the witness.
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1 You should consider that she's just reading off of this form

2 and to what extent she has knowledge as to the accuracy of the

3 form in deciding whether you should rely on it or not. You may

4 proceed, Mr. Spaan.

5 MR. SPAAN: Thank you.

6 BY MR. SPAAN:

7 Q Do you remember the question?

8 A I —  it does reflect that there were transfers to the

9 mailroom on this form.

10 Q And what dates are reflected on that form?

11 A  January 16th.

12 Q And how much, to what amount?

13 A  And that was $100.

14 Q Okay.

15 A And March 7th and that was for $250.

16 I Q Why don't we talk a little bit about this form. Was

17 | this prepareii for this hearing today?

18 I A This form was sent to Susie Barnett of the Ethics

19 Committee at her request.

20 Q Is there a form similar to this kept for every member

21 of the Legislature who has an accountable account?

22 i A Yes, there is.

23 j Q When is this information entered, if you know?

24 | A When the payment is made and then the next day the

25 check —  the checks process overnight, so the next day
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k n o w s .

the check number would be entered.

And w h o  would enter this?

Mindy Lobaugh who works in our accounting office and 

pays the accountable allowance account invoices.

So this then was not specifically prepared for this 

hearing, it was copied?

MR. SYREN: Objection. Foundation.

MR. SPAAN: That's what I'm trying to find out, if she

HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Continue on.

This would have been —  in order to make sure that

things reconcile at the end of the month, you want to

keep a record of the invoices that you pay and then 

these are compared to the automated reports we get from 

the accounting system and also another system we have. 

And so part of her responsibilities is to keep a sheet 

like this from —  for each Legislator.

Okay. I'm going to hand you, Ms. Schofield, what's 

been marked as Exhibit 8 and ask you if you could 

identify that document.

This document is a memorandum from Kris Drouillard who 

works in the Legislative Affairs Personnel office to 

Susie Barnett of the Ethics Committee.

Could you identify for me who Kris Drouillard —  is it 

Drouillard?
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1 A It's Drouillard. And she is a personnel assistant in

2 the Legislative Affairs Personnel office.

3 Q Okay. Do you know that she prepared this document?

4 A I didn't know that she prepared this document, b u t .....

5 Q And you recognize her initials?

6 A Yes.

7 MR. SPAAN: I'd move Number 8, Your Honor.

8 HEARING OFFICER: I think you said, what number?

9 MR. SPAAN: Eight.

10 HEARING OFFICER: Eight. Is there objection?

11 MR. SYREN: I suppose it's just a foundational, Your

12 Honor. I don't know that she —  she never prepared this

13 j document, she didn't know it was prepared until it was j  st

14 I shown to her today. I don't know that she can comment upon it.

15 I So my objection will be foundational.

16 HEARING OFFICER: Do you want to respond, Mr. Spaan?

17 I MR. SPAAN: Yes, I would. Your Honor, when you go

18 I through the Legislative Ethics Code and I do have it here, it

19 indicates that the Rules of Evidence are not enforced. What we

20 i have established is that she recognized the initials of this

21 I individual that she works with. And let me get you the

22 appropriate citation and I think, Mr. Syren, if he thinks this

23 document is not accurate, he'd simply —  he would surely have

24 the..right to cross examine this witness if he challenges its

25 j veracity.
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1 MR. SYREN: I'd just like to note my response, Your

2 Honor, is that we*re now stepping outside of tried and true

3 rules of evidence, which I think filter out good evidence from

4 bad evidence. The rules —  it's not so much that they don't

5 apply, it's that the Committee, if it so chooses are not bound

6 by the Rules of Evidence. But I think before you step out of

7 those bounds, we should probably have a real good reason for

8 doing so and some way to make sure that the evidence that's

9 coming in here is going to be authentic and something that's

10 going to be credible.

11 HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Spaan, could I have a copy of the

12 document?

13 MR. SPAAN: Sure, Mike. Your Honor, I'm referring to

14 Title 24.60.170 (J).

15 HEARING OFFICER: Members of the Committee, was with

16 the last document that I admitted indicating that the rules are

17 different for a hearing like this, you need to determine how

18 much you feel a document can be relied upon based on the

19 evidence that's given. In a normal civil trial or criminal

20 trial, the judge makes a preliminary determination that

21 something has to be reliable before the jury gets to see it.

22 An administrative proceeding is somewhat different since you

23 are specialized and have specialized knowledge, you can

24 determine whether you should rely on it or not. This document,

25 Mr. Syren, it seems like it would be pretty easy to establish
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if there's anything incorrect in it through cross examination 

or t h r o u g h  affirmative presentation of evidence. I will allow 

it to be admitted.

BY MR. SPAAN:

Q Ms. Schofield, does it indicate during the 1996

calendar year whether or not a Patricia Perez was 

employed by Representative Sanders?

8 A  Yes, it does.

D Q A n d  what are the dates of her employment listed?

10 A  J a n u a r y  5th through May 11th.

11 Q Okay. What about a Ms. Jeanne Lovell?

12 A Janu a r y  1st, 1996 to present.

13 Q I'm going to hand you what's been marked as Exhibit 9

14 and ask you, simply to identify that document to the

15 Committee.

16 A  This is part of a phone list that the Legislative

17 Affairs Agency prepares when —  at each Legislature and

18 each interim. This one was prepared February 1st,

19 1996, so it was probably the one we prepared at the

20 beginning of session.

21 MR. SPAAN: I move Exhibit 9.

22 MR. SYREN: No objection, Your Honor.

23 HEARING OFFICER: Nine will be admitted.

24 (Committee's Exhibit 9 admitted)

25 Q Does this document indicate whether Ms. Lovell was
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1 employed as a staff personnel for Representative

2 Sanders?

3 MR. SYREN: Objection. Foundation.

4 MR. SPAAN: Your Honor, I could repeat the question. I

5 as k e d  whether or not the document represented that Ms. Lovell

6 was employed as an employee of Representative Sanders and we've

7 admitted the document into evidence.

8 HEARING OFFICER: Again, I'm not going to repeat what I

9 indicated about the Rules of Evidence again. Mr. Syren, as to

10 things that easily could be challenged by Representative

11 Sanders, like if someone was employed or not, it seems to me

12 that the spirit of the administrative rules are such that it

13 should be admitted. If there's something that really is not

14 susceptible to corroboration or challenge, I think that we

15 w o u l d  look at more closely. Whether someone was employed or

16 I listed as employed in the Legislative directory is something

17 that is pretty easy to deal with one way or the other. And

18 j I'll admit the document. Do you want to be heard further?

-19 MR. SPAiN: I .....

20 MR. SYREN: Well, Your Honor, I understand the court's

21 I position. I think again, Mr. Spaan has the burden of proof

22 here and I don't want to just sort of skate over the Rules of 

2 3 I Evidence that we have in place here. So we take exception to

24 I the ruling, Your Honor.

25 HEARING OFFICER: All right.
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Q

Q

Q

SPAA? ;

Does this document, Ms. Schofield, indicate that both 

Ms. Lovell and Ms. Perez were employed for 

Representative Sanders during the second session of the 

Alaska State Legislature in 1996?

Yes, it does. That's what the list is for is to show 

which staff people are working for which Legislator. 

Thank you. I'm going to now hand you what's been 

marked as Exhibit 10 and ask you to identify that 

document, please.

This is a letter from me to Susie Barnett and it's 

dated October 15th, 1996.

And does it —  and again, I don't want you to tell me, 

but does it ask for a review of certain records?

This letter is in response to a request for a review of 

postage records.

And did you do that investigation or cause that 

investigation to be done?

I contacted our Legislative mail clerk and asked for 

her —  and asked her for the information, she keeps
|

records of it.

Okay.

MR. SPAAN: Your Honor, I'd move 10.

MR. .SYREN: No objection, Your Honor.

HEARING OFFICER:. Ten'will be admitted.
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1
Does it reflect that the —  does the investigation 

reflect that there were any charges to Representative 

Sanders' Juneau m a i lroom account on March 5th?

Yes, it does.

It shows that 239 pieces of mail were mailed on March 

5th, 1996 and that the cost was $76.48.

Thank you. I'm going to hand you, Ms. Schofield, 

what's been marked as Exhibit 12 and ask w h e t h e r  you 

recognize this document.

This letter is from James Crawford w h o .....

Let me interrupt you for a second.

Okay.

Could you identify for me and the members of the 

Committee who James Crawford is?

James Crawford is a member of our Legislative legal 

staff and it's his signature on the memo.

Okay. And you recognize his signature?

I don't actually recognize James' signature, but I know

that he is on our staff in our L e g i s l a t i v e .....

Okay. Does this appear to be your —  the stationary of

the legal services for the LAA?

Yes, it is.

MR. SPAAN: I move 12.

MR. SYREN: My objection would be foundational, Your
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1 Honor. I think that the easier to have done would be to have 

Mr. Crawford come here and testify about this, not somebody 

else who has never seen this or doesn't recognize the 

signature.

HEARING OFFICER: Well, I don't know that that would

have been easier for Mr. Crawford or not, but I have a 

question. Were these exhibits in the exhibits that w e r e

e x c h a n g e d.....

MR. SPAAN: They were, Your Honor.

HEARING OFFICER: ..... prior to trial.

MR. SPAAN: Yes.

HEARING OFFICER: I will admit it and inform the

members of the Committee that the Committee provided its 

exhibits to Representative Sanders prior to this h e a r i n g  and 

certainly can call people if they have any dispute about it.

( C o m m i t t e e ' s  E x h i b i t  12 a d m i t t e d )  

Q And why don't you —  it's a very short letter, w h y

don't you just read it for the members of the 

Committee.

A Dear Ms. Barnett, enclosed is the computer generated

identification information for the documents previously 

sent to the Committee.

HEARING OFFICER: Excuse me, could you speak up a

little bit, please, there's some fans running.

A Sure. Enclosed is the computer generated
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identification information for the documents previously 

sent to the Committee. The information suggests that 

one of the documents was apparently last modif i e d  on 

March 4th, 1996 at 10:38 a.m. and that the other 

d ocument was apparently last modif i e d  on the same date 

at 10:43 a.m.

Q And what's attached to the second page of Exhibit 12?

A  A  list of two word processing documents.

Q And are those documents identified on the left-hand

side, if you could read it?

A  It says, straw poll and the next one says poll.

Q And is there, on the right-hand side, a date and time

which indicates w h e n  the work was done?

A  The first one says, Monday, March 4th, 1996 at 10:43

a.m. and the second one says, Monday, March 4th, 1996 

at 10:38 a.m.

Q Thank you.

MR. SPAAN: Mr. White, I'd.h a v e ......

HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Spaan, I'm going to ask you to

just hold off for a minute until we catch up with the 

d o c u m e n t s .

MR. SPAAN: I apologize, Your Honor.

HEARING OFFICER: I think we're there if you want, Mr.

Spaan.

MR. SPAAN: Fine. Ms. Schofield, thank you for
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1 attending today, I have no further questions on behalf of the

2 Committee.

3 HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Syren, do you have cross

4 examination?

5 MR. SYREN: I do, Your Honor.

6 KARLA SCHOFIELD

7 testified as follows on:

8 CROSS EXAMINATION

9 BY MR. SYREN:

10 Q Ms. Schofield, directing your attention again to

11 Exhibit 1 2 ......

12 A Um-hum. (Affirmative)

13 Q  the second page, do you k n o w  if there were any

14 documents associated with those entries?

15 A No, I don't. Not from personal knowledge. They look

16 l i k e ......

17 | CHAIRMAN MAC NEILLE: Could you speak-up, please.

18 A Oh, no, I don't, not from personal knowledge. They

19 , look like what —  it looks like when you look up a

20 document in your computer.

21 Q You don't know if there's any document associated with

22 those entries though; is that right?

23 A No, I don't.

24 HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Syren, could you speak-up also.

25 MR. SYREN: I can move this just a little bit closer,
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1 too, yes.

2 HEARING OFFICER: We're not hearing very well down

3 here.

4 Q You don't know if there's a document associated with

5 those entries, though, right?

6 A  No, I don't.

7 Q All right.

8 j MR. SYREN: Thank you. No further questions, Your

9 | Honor.

10 MR. SPAAN: Do you have any follow-up?

11 MR. SPAAN: No, Your Honor. It's up to the Committee,

12 if they had any questions.

13 HEARING OFFICER: Does the Committee have any questions

14 of the witness.

15 j CHAIRMAN MAC NEILLE: Yes, I do.

16 A  Okay.

17 | KARLA SCHOFIELD

18 testified as follows on:

19 INQUIRY

2 0  BY CHAIRMAN MAC N E IL L E :

21 Q On Exhibit 4, the second page, are you familiar with

22 i these forms?

23 A I'm familiar with the forms. They're kept in the —

24 each accountable allowance account is kept in a folder

25 by Legislator and on one side of that folder is a form
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like this.

Q And that's in your area of Legislative Affairs?

A  Yes, it is.

Q And does Wendy Lovelaw w o r k  for you?

A  Yes, W e n d y  Lovelaw is an accounting technician in the

accounting office.

Q Okay. Under your responsibility?

A  Yes, that's correct.

Q Okay, thanks. No me cs questions.

H EAR I N G  OFFICER: Do any other members of the Committee

have any questions?

MR. GRANGER: Yes, I do.

HEARING OFFICER: Go ahead, sir.

K A R L A  SCHOFIELD

t e s tified as follows on:

INQUIRY

BY MR. GRANGER:

Q This $100 and this $250 that you pointed out earlier, I

assume those are withdrawals from the account by 

R epresentative Sanders; is that correct?

A  Yes. What they represent is a withdrawal from his

accountable allowance account and a transfer to his 

m a i l r o o m  account in the Legislative mailroom.

Q As a bulk transfer?

A  Yes.
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1 Q N o t as a s p e c i f i c  e x p e n d itu re ?

2 A T h a t 's  c o r r e c t .  T hey make d ep os  —  p e o p le  make

3 d e p o s i t s  t o  t h e  m a ilro o m .

4 MR. GRANGER: Thank y o u .

5 HEARING OFFICER: Do you  h a ve  a q u e s t io n ,  M r. Donahue?

6 MR. DONAHUE: I  h a ve  tw o  q u e s t io n s ,  b o th  r e l a t i n g  t o

7 t h e  a c c o u n ta b le ,  n o n -a c c o u n ta b le - ty p e  o f  a c c o u n ts .

8 KARLA SCHOFIELD

9 t e s t i f i e d  as f o l lo w s  o n :

10 INQUIRY

11 BY MR. DONAHUE:

12 Q Can a L e g is la t o r  d e c id e  t o  ta k e  $ 1 ,0 0 0  o f  th e  6 ,0 0 0  as

13 n o n -a c c o u n ta b le ,  th e n  a c c o u n t  f o r  th e  n e x t  2 ,0 0 0  and

14 th e n  ta k e  a n o th e r  1 ,0 0 0  n o n -a c c o u n ta b le  and th e n

15 a c c o u n t f o r  th e  l a s t  2 ,0 0 0  o r  any  m ix  t h e r e o f?

16 A Y es, t h e y  c a n . A t  t h e  b e g in n in g  o f  th e  s e s s io n ,  i n

17 f a c t ,  i f  t h e y 'd  l i k e  t o  ta k e  a c e r t a in  p o r t i o n  o f  i t  as

18 a c c o u n ta b le  and a c e r t a in  p o r t i o n  o f  i t  as n o n -

19 a c c o u n ta b le ,  th e y  c a n . And so m e tim e s  d u r in g  th e  y e a r

20 th e y  may e le c t  t o  ta k e  a c e r t a in  am ount o f  m oney o u t  as

21 n o n -a c c o u n ta b le .

22 Q O kay.

23 MR. DONAHUE: Can I  f o l lo w - u p ?

24 HEARING OFFICER: S u re .

25 Q Any n o n -a c c o u n ta b le  fu n d s  t h a t  a re  ta k e n  o u t  b y  th e
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L e g is la t o r  a u t o m a t ic a l ly  w o u ld  be r e p o r te d  on W -2s 

a n d /o r  h a ve  ta x e s  ta k e n  o u t  on them ?

B o th . They ru n  th r o u g h  th e  p a y r o l l  s y s te m  so  th e y  have  

ta x e s  and w i t h h o ld in g  d e d u c te d  fro m  them  and a re  

r e p o r te d  on th e  W -2 .

HEARING OFFICER: Keep g o in g .  You h ave  th e  f l o o r  u n t i l

d o n e .

MR. DONAHUE: O kay.

I n  te rm s  o f  t r a n s f e r s  t o  th e  p o s ta g e  a c c o u n t . . . . .  

Um-hum. ( A f f i r m a t i v e )

 f ro m  an a c c o u n ta b le  a c c o u n t,  does t h a t  money

become n o n -a c c o u n ta b le  when i t ' s  ta x e d ?  I s  i t  l i k e  

w r i t i n g  a c h e c k  t o  t h a t  i n d i v i d u a l  L e g is la t o r  and 

t h e r e f o r e  does i t  h a ve  W-2 r e p o r t i n g  and t a x  a b i l i t y ?

I f  I  u n d e rs ta n d  y o u r  q u e s t io n ,  I  t h i n k  i t ' s  t h a t  i f  

i t ' s  t r a n s f e r r e d  fro m  th e  a c c o u n ta b le  a c c o u n t  t o  th e  

m a ilro o m  a c c o u n t,  t h a t ' s  c o n s id e re d  an e x p e n d itu r e  o f  

p o s ta g e ,  so i t  d o e s n ' t  go th ro u g h  th e  p a y r o l l  s y s te m , 

i t  i s  j u s t  th e  —  t h e  a c c o u n ta b le  a llo w a n c e  a c c o u n t i s  

re d u c e d  by th e  $100 and th e n  th e y  h ave  th e  $100 in  th e  

m a ilro o m  a c c o u n t t o  w h ic h  th e y  c o u ld  c h a rg e  p o s ta g e .

So f o l l o w in g  up on t h a t ,  i f  I  w e re  a L e g is la t o r  and I

ch o se  t o  t r a n s f e r  $ 6 ,0 0 0  t o  th e  p o s ta g e  a c c o u n t ..........

Um-hum. ( A f f i r m a t i v e )

 spend  i t  on p e r s o n a l  p o s ta g e ,  I  w o u ld  be a b le  t o
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a v o id  h a v in g  ta x e s  ta k e n  o u t?

T h a t 's  c o r r e c t .  I f  yo u  u sed  i t  f o r  p o s ta g e .  I f ,  t h e n ,  

yo u  d id  n o t  ru n  f o r  o f f i c e  a g a in  and  d id  —  t h a t  money 

w o u ld  be —  th e n  i t  w o u ld  be is s u e d  —  yo u  w o u ld  no 

lo n g e r  h a ve  an o p p o r t u n i t y  t o  u se  o u r  p o s ta g e  m e te r ,  so  

th e n  we w o u ld  p u t  i t  on y o u r  c h e c k  a f t e r  yo u  —  when 

yo u  had  l e f t ,  y e a h .

W hat I 'm  le a d in g  t o  i s  t r y i n g  t o  u n d e rs ta n d  t h a t  m o s t 

o f  th e  p o s ta g e  a c c o u n ts  o r  maybe n o t  m o s t,  th e y  can  be 

s e tu p  b y  a p e r s o n a l c h e c k  fro m  th e  L e g is la t o r ?

Y es, th e y  can  b e .

And th e y  a re  a s e r v ic e  t h a t ' s  been  p r o v id e d  t o  a s s i s t  

t h e  L e g is la t o r  w i t h  L e g is la t i v e  m a i l in g s  o r  p e r s o n a l  

m a i l in g s ?

T h e r e 's  a c t u a l l y  n o t  a d i s t i n c t i o n .  I f  yo u  —  one o f  

t h e  e x h ib i t s  yo u  h a v e , i n  te rm s  o f  t h e  m a ilro o m  

a c c o u n t ,  t h e r e 's  n o t  a d i s t i n c t i o n  b e ca u s e  i t  s a y s  i t ' s

t h e i r  p e r s o n a l p o s ta g e  a c c o u n t .  A n d ...........

HEARING OFFICER: You need  t o  ke e p  y o u r  v o ic e  up  a

O kay. On E x h ib i t  1 , i f  yo u  lo o k  on Page —  i t ' s  th e  

se co nd  t o  t h e  l a s t  page  o f  E x h ib i t  1 . I t  t a l k s  a b o u t 

t h e  p e r s o n a l p o s ta g e  a c c o u n ts .  And —  and t h a t  p o s ta g e  

a c c o u n t i s  t h e r e  and L e g is la t o r s  ru n  m a i l  th r o u g h  i t .  

I t ' s  n o t  —  i t ' s  n o t  s o m e th in g  —  we d o n ' t  go  th ro u g h
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t h e  m a i l  and lo o k  and see  w h a t 's  b e in g  m a i le d .

O kay. And i f  I  m ay, in  f a c t ,  s in c e  i t  c o u ld  

p o t e n t i a l l y  be th e  L e g is la t o r s  p r i v a t e  c h e c k , i t ' s  

t h e i r  p r i v a t e  b u s in e s s  w h a t h ap pe ns w i t h  t h a t  a c c o u n t 

e ven  th o u g h  i t ' s  a S ta te  s e r v ic e ?

T h a t 's  how th e  —  how i t ' s  s e tu p .

O kay.

T h a t  th e y  j u s t  p a y  u s  f o r  t h a t  s e r v ic e  o r  p a id  th e  

p o s ta g e ,  i s  w h a t t h e y ' r e  p a y in g .

B u t th e  money t r a n s f e r r e d  o u t  o f  t h e i r  a c c o u n ta b le  

$ 6 ,0 0 0  i s  a c c o u n te d  f o r  as th o u g h  i t  was a S ta te  

L e g is la t u r e  e x p e n d itu re ?

The e x p e n d itu re s  fro m  th e  a c c o u n ta b le  a llo w a n c e  a re  f o r  

b u s in e s s  e xp e n se s  o f  b e in g  a L e g is la t o r .  So t h a t  

p o s ta g e  m ig h t  be a l i t t l e  d i f f e r e n t  s in c e  t h a t ' s  a 

b u s in e s s  —  t h a t ' s  a b u s in e s s  e xp e n se  i s  t h e  d e f i n i t i o n  

o f  th e  a c c o u n ta b le  a llo w a n c e  a c c o u n ts .

B u t t h e r e  i s  no way t o  t r a c k  t h e  money t h a t  g oe s  i n t o  

th e  p o s ta g e  m e te r  t h a t ' s  s e p a ra te d  as b e in g  a b u s in e s s  

a c c o u n ta b le  fu n d  v e rs u s  p e rs o n a l c h e c k  fu n d ?

We know how L e g is la t o r s  p a id  f o r  t h e i r  p o s ta g e  —  how 

th e y  made t h e i r  p o s ta g e  d e p o s i t s .  B ecause  i f  t h e y  gave  

us a p e r s o n a l c h e c k , t h a t ' s  re c o rd e d  and i f  i t ' s  a 

t r a n s f e r  fro m  t h e i r  a c c o u n ta b le  a llo w a n c e  a c c o u n t,  

t h a t ' s  re c o rd e d .
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MR. DONAHUE: I  t h i n k  t h a t ' s  a l l  I  w a n t.

HEARING OFFICER: A re  yo u  s u re ?

MR. DONAHUE: I  t h i n k  s o .

KARLA SCHOFIELD

t e s t i f i e d  as  f o l l o w s  o n :

INQUIRY

BY MS. MCCOY:

Q So L e g is la t o r s  ca n  d e p o s i t  p e r s o n a l  fu n d s  i n t o  th e

p o s ta g e  a c c o u n t,  b u t  th e y  c a n n o t d e p o s i t  p e r s o n a l  fu n d s  

and w o u ld n ' t  w a n t t o  i n t o  t h e i r  a l lo w a b le  —  o r  t h e i r  

a c c o u n ta b le ?

A T h a t 's  c o r r e c t .

Q O kay.

REPRESENTATIVE TOOHEY: I f  I  m ig h t  j u s t  in t r o d u c e  t o

c le a r  t h in g s  up  as a L e g is la t o r ,  when yo u  w a n t t o  m a i l  y o u r  

l i g h t  b i l l  o r  y o u r  phone  b i l l ,  I  h a ve  a r o l l  o f  s ta m p s  i n  my 

d e s k  and I  t h i n k  m o s t L e g is la t o r s  w i l l  do  t h a t .  I f  yo u  can  you  

p u t  i n  t h e  m a i lb o x ,  i f  n o t ,  yo u  p u t  i t  i n  t h e  p o s ta g e  —  in  th e  

—  o c c a s io n a l ly  we p u t  i t  i n  t h e r e  b e ca u se  we d o n ' t  h a ve  t im e  

l i t e r a l l y  t o  go d o w n s ta ir s  t o  p u t  i t  i n  th e  m a ilb o x .  B u t 

n o r m a l ly  yo u  do  n o t  p u t  an u n s ta m p e d  e n v e lo p e  i n  th e  p o s ta g e  

b in  t h a t  has  a p e r s o n a l n o te  t o  i t ,  I  d o n ' t  and m o s t 

L e g is la t o r s  d o n ' t ,  I  d o n ' t  b e l ie v e ,  t o  c le a r  t h a t  u p .

HEARING OFFICER: M r. S paan, do you  h ave  any f o l lo w - u p

q u e s t io n s ?
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1 MR. SPAAN: No, M r. W h ite .

2 HEARING OFFICER: M r. S y re n , do you  h ave  any f o l lo w - u p

3 q u e s t io n s  f o r  Ms. S c h o f ie ld ?

4 MR. SYREN: J u s t  so  I 'm  c le a r .

5 KARLA SCHOFIELD

6 t e s t i f i e d  as f o l lo w s  o n :

7 RECROSS EXAMINATION

8 BY NR. SYREN:

9 Q You d id  n o t  p re p a re  t h i s  d o cu m e n t, Page 2 o f  E x h ib i t  4 ,

10 yo u  d id  n o t  p re p a re  t h a t ,  r i g h t ?

11 A I 'm  lo o k in g  a t  —  I  d id  n o t  p re p a re  Page 2 o f  4 . T h a t

12 was p r e p .............

13 Q Then in f o r m a t io n  e n te re d  on t h a t  page  was e n te r e d  by

14 som ebody o th e r  th a n  y o u ; i s  t h a t  r i g h t ?

15 A T h a t 's  c o r r e c t .

16 MR. S IR EN : No f u r t h e r  q u e s t io n s .

17 HEARING OFFICER: O kay. You may be e x c u s e d , th a n k  you

18 v e r y  m uch.

19 A O kay, th a n k s .

20 MR. SPAAN: Thank y o u .

21 I HEARING OFFICER: The C o m m itte e  has in d ic a t e d  t h a t

22 w o u ld  p r e f e r ,  as f a r  as  b r e a k in g ,  t h a t  we go a n o th e r  h o u r .  Do

23 yo u  h ave  a n o th e r  w i tn e s s  re a d y ?

24 MR. SPAAN: Y es, I  d o .

25 HEARING OFFICER: O kay.
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MR. SPAAN: I s  R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs  a t t e n d in g  by

phone?

MR. SYREN: I  b e l ie v e  t h a t  was o u r  a g re e m e n t.

MR. SPAAN: Good. I ' d  l i k e  t o  c a l l  R e p r e s e n ta t iv e

S a n d e rs .

MR. SYREN: A l l  r i g h t .  I  t h i n k  —  Ms. B a r n e t t  yo u  s a id

yo u  w a n te d  h im  a v a i la b le  a t  w h a t- t im e ?

MS. BARNETT: R ig h t .  I f  I  c o u ld  j u s t  i n t e r j e c t  f o r  a 

m om ent. We s e t  i t  up so  t h a t  t h e r e  w o u ld  be a lu n c h  b re a k  

b e tw e e n  1 2 :0 0  and  1 :1 5  o r  1 :2 5 ,  I  h a v e n ' t  had  a ch a n ce  t o  t e l l  

yo u  t h i s ,  and R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs  i s  p re p a re d  t o  c a l l  i n  a t  

1 :2 5  i s  my u n d e r s ta n d in g .

13 MR. SYREN: T h a t 's  c o r r e c t .

14 MS. BARNETT: So i f  yo u  a re  g o in g  t o  ta k e  a b re a k ,  I

15 w o u ld  p r e f e r  i t  was now.

16 HEARING OFFICER: O kay. W e ' l l  t a k e  a re c e s s  now u n t i l

17 1 :1 5 .  One t h in g  I  s h o u ld  t e l l  t h e  C o m m itte e , as i s  done  i n  a

18 t r i a l ,  e v id e n c e  comes i n  one  p ie c e  a t  a t im e ,  d o n ' t  m akeup y o u r

19 m in d s , yo u  s h o u ld n ' t  t a l k  t o  each  o th e r  a b o u t th e  e v id e n c e

20 u n t i l  a l l  o f  i t  i s  i n  and b o th  o f  th e  a t t o r n e y s  h a ve  g iv e n

21 t h e i r  a rg u m e n ts  t o  yo u  as t o  w h a t th e y  t h i n k  i t  m eans. O kay,

22 re c e s s  u n t i l  1 :1 5 .

23 ( O f f  r e c o r d )

24 (On r e c o r d )

25 MR. SPAAN: T h e re  i s  a w i tn e s s  i n  th e  h e a r in g  room ,
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1 n o b o d y 's  a ske d  f o r  o r  in v o k e d  th e  e x c lu s io n  r u l e  f o r  w itn e s s e s .

2 I  d o n ' t  c a re ,  b u t  I  j u s t  w a n t t o  b r in g  i t  t o  M r. S y r e n 's

3 a t t e n t i o n  i f  h e 'd  l i k e  t o  r e q u e s t  t o  th e  C h a ir .

4 MR. SYREN: W h ich  w itn e s s  i s  i t ?

5 MR. SPAAN: I t ' s  M r. W oods.

6 MR. SYREN: I ' d  l i k e  h im  t o  be e x c lu d e d .

7 HEARING OFFICER: I  d i d n ' t  h e a r  w h a t yo u  s a id ?

8 MR. SYREN: I ' d  l i k e  M r. Woods t o  be —  a l l  w itn e s s e s

9 t o  be e x c lu d e d  u n t i l  i t ' s  t im e  f o r  them  t o  t e s t i f y .

10 MR. SPAAN: I  t h i n k  t h a t  w o u ld  be n o rm a l.  I  w o u ld n ' t

11 —  t h e r e 's  a p la c e  f o r  them  t o  s i t  r i g h t  o u t s id e  w h e re  we d o n ' t

12 d e la y  th e  h e a r in g  —  and some o f  th e s e  w i tn e s s e s ,  M r. W h ite ,

13 I ' v e  n e v e r  m e t i n  p e rs o n ,  so  I ' l l  t r y  and do w h a t I  c a n .

14 HEARING OFFICER: M r. S y re n , a re  you  re a d y  t o  g e t

15 s t a r t e d .

16 MR. SPAAN: E xcuse  me, I .............

17 MR. SYREN: Y es.

18 MR. SPAAN: .......... do  h ave  one o b je c t io n .  M s. B a r n e t t  i s

19 an i n v e s t i g a t o r  and my a s s is t a n t  as w e l l  as I  in t e n d  t o  c a l l

20 h e r ,  so  I  w o u ld  l i k e  p e r m is s io n  f o r  h e r  t o  s t a y .

21 HEARING OFFICER: I s  t h e r e  o b je c t io n  t o  t h a t ,  M r.

22 S y re n ?

23 MR. SYREN: No.

24 HEARING OFFICER: O kay.

25 MR. SPAAN: T h a n ks .
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1  HEARING OFFICER: Y e s . I s  th e  n e x t  o r d e r  o f  b u s in e s s ,

2 ! R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a nd e rs?

3 MR. SPAAN: Y es, i t  i s .

4 HEARING OFFICER: I s  he h o o ke d  up y e t?

5 MR. SYREN: He a d v is e d  me t h a t  he was g o in g  t o  c a l l  a t

6 t h e  a p p o in te d  t im e .

7 HEARING OFFICER: W here d oe s th e  p hone  r i n g  th ro u g h ?

8 MR. SYREN: Ms. B a r n e t t ,  I  t h i n k  h a s  th e  a n sw e rs  t o  a l l

9 th o s e  q u e s t io n s .  I  h ave  a num ber w h e re  he  can  be re a c h e d .

10 HEARING OFFICER: W e l l ,  why d o n ' t  we w a i t  u n t i l  Ms.

11 B a r n e t t  g e ts  b a c k  and see  w h e re  she  i s  as f a r  as t h a t  g o e s .

12 ( O f f  r e c o r d )

13 (On r e c o rd )

14 MS. BARNETT: R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs?

15 REPRESENTATIVE SANDERS: Y e s .

16 MS. BARNETT: Can yo u  h e a r  me, t h i s  i s  S u s ie  B a rn e t t?

17 REPRESENTATIVE SANDERS: Y e s , S u s ie  I  can  h e a r  y o u .

18 MS. BARNETT: O kay, g r e a t .  You a re  on s p e a k e r  phone  a t

19 th e  p u b l i c  h e a r in g  and I 'm  g o in g  t o  t u r n  i t  o v e r  t o  M a rg ie  Mac

20 N e i l l e  and th e  p u b l i c  h e a r in g  o f f i c e r ,  M ik e  W h ite .

21 HEARING OFFICER: R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs , t h i s  i s

22 M ic h a e l W h ite ,  t h e  h e a r in g  o f f i c e r ,  can  yo u  h e a r  me okay?

23 REPRESENTATIVE SANDERS: Y es, I  c a n .

24 HEARING OFFICER: I  u n d e rs ta n d  t h a t  you  h ave  been

25 c a l le d  as a w itn e s s  b y  th e  C o m m itte e , i s  t h a t  y o u r
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1 u n d e rs ta n d in g ?

2 ; REPRESENTATIVE SANDERS: Y es .

3 HEARING OFFICER: And a t  t h i s  t im e  I  need  t o  sw ea r you

4 i n ,  w o u ld  yo u  r a i s e  y o u r  r i g h t  h a n d , p le a s e ?

5 REPRESENTATIVE SANDERS: S u re .

6 | (O a th  a d m in is te r e d )

7 REPRESENTATIVE SANDERS: I  d o .

8 I JERRY SANDERS

9 c a l le d  as a w i tn e s s  on b e h a l f  o f  t h e  C o m m itte e , t e s t i f i e d  as

10 f o l l o w s  o n :

11 DIRECT EXAMINATION

12 HEARING OFFICER: F o r  th e  r e c o r d ,  s i r ,  w o u ld  you  s t a t e

13 y o u r  f u l l  name?

14 A J e r r y  S a n d e rs .

15 HEARING OFFICER: Y o u r m a i l in g  a d d re s s ?

16 A P .O . BOX 2 3 -0 0 9 0 .

17 HEARING OFFICER: And y o u r  o c c u p a t io n ?

18 A A n c h o ra g e  995 23 .

19 HEARING OFFICER: I  a p o lo g iz e  f o r  i n t e r r u p t i n g .  Y o u r

20 o c c u p a t io n ,  s i r ?

21 A I 'm  s o r r y ,  o c c u p a t io n ?

22 I HEARING OFFICER: Y e s .

23 A I 'm  a lo n g  sho rem a n .

24 HEARING OFFICER: And w h e re  a re  you  p h y s i c a l l y  lo c a te d

25 to d a y ?
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1 , A I n  S a n ta  Fe , New M e x ic o .

2 I HEARING OFFICER: Thank y o u , s i r .  I 'm  g o in g  t o  t u r n

3 th e  m ic ro p h o n e  o v e r  t o  M r. Spaan a t  t h i s  p o in t .

4 j BY MR. SPAAN:

5 Q Good a f te r n o o n  R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs , can  yo u  h e a r  me,

6 s i r ?

7 A Y es, s i r .

Q Good.

9 MR. SYREN: M r. S paan, R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs , ca n  you

10 h e a r  me as w e l l ,  t h i s  i s  Les S y re n?

11 A Y es.

12 MR. SYREN: O kay, th a n k s .  T hank y o u .

13 Q R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs , how lo n g  h ave  yo u  s e rv e d  i n  th e

14 A la s k a  S ta te  L e g is la t u r e ,  s i r ?

15 A I t  w i l l  be f o u r  y e a rs  in  J a n u a ry .

16 Q O kay. And w h a t d i s t r i c t  do yo u  r e p r e s e n t ,  s i r ?

17 A D i s t r i c t  19 .

18 | Q And can  yo u  t e l l  me th e  —  i n  g e n e r a l  te rm ,  i s  t h a t  i n

19 A n c h o ra g e , s i r ,  I 'm  s o r r y ?

20 A Y es. T h a t 's  i n  —  th e y  c a l l  t h e  S o u th /e a s t  m id - to w n .

21 Q O kay. R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs , d id  y o u r  C o u n s e l g iv e

22 you  th e  c o p ie s  o f  th e  C o m m it te e 's  e x h i b i t s  t h a t  th e y

23 in te n d e d  t o  in t r o d u c e ,  h a ve  yo u  seen  th o s e ?

24 MR. SYREN: O b je c t io n .  I t ' s  a t t o r n e y / c l i e n t  p r i v i l e g e .

25 Q Do you  h ave  c o p ie s  o f  th e  C o m m itte e  e x h i b i t s ,  s i r ,  i n
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1 f r o n t  o f  you?

2 MR. SYREN: Same o b je c t io n ,  Y o u r H o n o r.

3 HEARING OFFICER: I 'm  g o in g  t o  o v e r r u le  i t  on w h e th e r

4 he  has c o p ie s  o f  the m .

5 Q S ir ?

6 A Say a g a in ?

7 Q Do you  h ave  th e  c o p ie s  o f  th e  e x h ib i t s  t h a t  th e

8 C o m m itte e  in te n d e d  t o  in t r o d u c e  i n t o  e v id e n c e  to d a y ?

9 A No, s i r ,  I  d o n ' t .

10 Q O kay. R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs , d id  you  p a r t i c i p a t e  i n  a

11 R e p u b lic a n  S tra w  P o l l  i n  J a n u a ry  o f  1996 , s i r ?

12 MR. SYREN: And a t  t h i s  t im e  I ' l l  i n s t r u c t  my c l i e n t

13 n o t  t o  a nsw e r based  on th e  F i f t h  Am endm ent.

14 Q R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs , a re  you  g o in g  t o  ta k e  th e

15 a d v ic e  o f  C o u n s e l, s i r ?

16 A Y es, s i r .

17 Q D id  you  f o r m e r ly  t e l l  me t h a t  y o u , i n  f a c t ,  d id  a t te n d

18 th e  R e p u b lic a n  S tra w  P o l l  f o r  D i s t r i c t  19?

19 MR. SYREN: Same o b je c t io n .

20 HEARING OFFICER: F i f t h  Amendment?

21 MR. SYREN: F i f t h  Am endm ent, d o n ' t  a n s w e r.

22 MR. SPAAN: Y o u r H o n o r, I ' v e  g o t  a co p y  o f  th e

23 d e p o s i t io n  w here  h e 's  answ ered  t h i s  q u e s t io n .  H e 's  w a iv e d  i t

24 as t o  t h i s  q u e s t io n .

25 HEARING OFFICER: M r. S y re n , do you  w a n t t o  re s p o n d  t o
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1 t h a t?

2 MR. SYREN: Go ahead and a n s w e r, J e r r y .

3 A T e l l  me th e  q u e s t io n  a g a in .

4 BY KR. SPAAN:

5 Q D id  you  p a r t i c i p a t e  i n  t h e  R e p u b lic a n  S tra w  P o l l  f o r

6 D i s t r i c t  19 i n  J a n u a ry  o f  t h i s  y e a r ,  s i r ?

7 A Y es , s i r .

8 j Q M r. S a n d e rs , d id  y o u  c a u s e  a l e t t e r  t o  be w r i t t e n  t o

9 i p a r t i c i p a n t s  o f  t h a t  s t r a w  p o l l  f ro m  y o u r  d i s t r i c t ?

10 MR. SYREN: Now, I ' l l  i n s t r u c t  my c l i e n t  n o t  t o  a n sw e r

11 th e  q u e s t io n ,  Y o u r H o n o r...........

12 I HEARING OFFICER: B ased o n .............

13 i MR. SYREN:...... .......... base d  on th e  F i f t h  Am endm ent.

14 I HEARING OFFICER: ...........F i f t h  Amendment? M r. S paan, do

15 yo u  w a n t t o  re s p o n d  t o  t h a t  a s s e r t io n  o f  p r i v i l e g e ?

16 MR. SPAAN: W e l l ,  f i r s t  o f  a l l ,  I  w a n t t o  s im p ly  h ave

17 th e  C h a ir  and m y s e lf  i n q u i r e  i f  R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs  i s  g o in g

18 t o  ta k e  th e  a d v ic e  o f  C o u n se l?

19 HEARING OFFICER: R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs , d id  yo u  h e a r

20 M r. S p aa n ' s comment?

21 A Y es.

22 HEARING OFFICER: When y o u r  a t t o r n e y  in d ic a t e s  on y o u r

23 b e h a l f  t h a t  y o u  in te n d  t o  ta k e  t h e  F i f t h  Amendment and r e fu s e

24 t o  a n s w e r, i s  i t  y o u r  i n t e n t i o n  t o  f o l l o w  h is  a d v ic e ?

25 A Y es, s i r .
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BY MR. SPAAN:

Q R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs , i s  i t  y o u r  c o n t e n t io n  t h a t  an

a n sw e r t o  t h a t  q u e s t io n  w o u ld  le a d  t o  p o s s ib le  c r im in a l

c h a rg e s , s i r ?

MR. SYREN: O b je c t io n ,  Y o u r H o n o r. D o n 't  a n sw e r th e

q u e s t io n  R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e r s . •

HEARING OFFICER: O v e r a l l ,  R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs , in

t h i s  p e r io d  o f  t im e  w h i le  y o u r  a t t o r n e y  i s  m a k in g  o b je c t io n s  

q u e s t io n  by q u e s t io n ,  I  w a n t t o  c a u t io n  you  s in c e  y o u 'r e  n o t  

h e re  n e x t  t o  h im  t o  w i t h h o ld  y o u r  a n sw e r u n t i l  M r. S y re n  

i n s t r u c t s  you  one way o r  a n o th e r  o k a y .

A Y es, s i r .

MR. SYREN: The o b je c t io n  g oes t o  th e  F i f t h  Am endm ent,

b u t  a ls o  th e  a t t o r n e y / c l i e n t  p r i v i l e g e .

HEARING OFFICER: W hat was th e  q u e s t io n  a g a in ,  I  was

l i s t e n i n g  t o  F i f t h  Amendment?

MR. SPAAN: I 'm  s o r r y .  The q u e s t io n  was w h e th e r  o r  n o t

he h a d  ca used  a l e t t e r  d a te d  M arch  4 th  t o  be m a i le d .  I  t h i n k  

he e vo ke d  th e  F i f t h  Am endm ent. I  th e n  a ske d  h im  i f  i t  was on 

th e  a d v ic e  o f  C o u n s e l,  he s a id ,  y e s , I  th e n  a ske d  h im  i f  he 

th o u g h t  —  I  w a n te d  t o  make s u re  i t  was a p ro p e r  e x e r c is e  o f  

th e  F i f t h  Amendment t h a t  an a n sw e r t o  t h a t  q u e s t io n  c o u ld  le a d  

t o  c r im in a l  c h a rg e s  o r  t o  a c h a in  o f  e v id e n c e  w h ich  c o u ld  le a d  

t o  c r im in a l  c h a rg e s ,  t h a t  was my q u e s t io n .
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1 HEARING OFFICER: I ' l l  c e r t a i n l y  p e r m i t  y o u  t o  a rg u e

2 t h a t  l a t e r  o n . And yo u  a re  p e r m i t te d  t o  in q u i r e  q u e s t io n  by

3 q u e s t io n ,  b u t  i f  M r. S y re n  in d ic a t e s  t h a t  h e 's  a s s e r t in g  th e

4 F i f t h ,  I  t h i n k  b ase d  on  R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs ' p r i o r  a nsw e r

5 t h a t  h e 's  g o in g  t o  f o l l o w  th e  a d v ic e  o f  C o u n s e l, we d o n ' t  need

6 t o  go any f u r t h e r  b e yo n d  M r. S y re n 's  o b je c t io n .

7 MR. SYREN: F o r  th e  re c o rd  th o u g h ,  Y o u r H o n o r, I ' d  l i k e

8 t o  n o te  t h a t  I  h a ve  r a is e d  th e  o th e r  o b je c t io n  and  t h a t  i s ,

9 j a t t o r n e y / c l i e n t  p r i v i l e g e  t o  th e  l a s t  q u e s t io n .

10 j HEARING OFFICER: W e l l ,  I 'm  n o t  s u re  I ........

11 | MR. SPAAN: W e l l ,  I ' d  l i k e  t o  t a l k  a b o u t i t .  T h is

12 I i n d i v i d u a l  i s  a w i t n e s s .

13 j HEARING OFFICER: One moment p le a s e .  M r. S y re n , w h a t

14 j q u e s t io n  i s  i t  t h a t  y o u 'r e  o b je c t in g  t o  th e

15 j a t t o r n e y / c l i e n t ...........

16 MR. SYREN: The l a s t  one .

17 I HEARING OFFICER: C o u ld  you  r e s t a t e  i t ?

18 | MR. SYREN: The l a s t  one w here  h e 's  a s k in g  f o r  —  o f

19 j R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs ' u n d e rs ta n d in g  o f  w h e th e r  o r  n o t  th e s e

20 t h in g s  w o u ld  le a d  t o  —  any o f  th e s e  q u e s t io n s  w o u ld  le a d  t o

21 c r im in a l  v i o l a t i o n s .  T h a t  g e ts  r i g h t  i n t o  th e  a re a  o f  o u r

22 d is c u s s io n s  b a ck  and f o r t h .

23 ! MR. SPAAN: i - . t i i ,  th e n  I  w ith d ra w  t h a t  q u e s t io n .

24 j MR. SYREN: And t h a t ' s  —  t h a t ' s ...........

25 j HEARING OFFICER: O kay. I  a g re e  w i t h  y o u .
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1 MR. SPAAN: And h e 's  a b s o lu t e ly  r i g h t .

2 HEARING OFFICER: O kay.

3 MR. SPAAN: I  a p o lo g iz e ,  M r. S y re n .

4 ! BY MB. SPAAN:

5 Q M r. S a n d e rs , w h a t 's  been a d m it te d  as C o m m itte e  E x h ib i t

6 4 i s  a L e g is la t i v e  A f f a i r s  a g e n cy  fo rm ,  s i r ,  w h e re

7 y o u 'v e  ch e c ke d  a box  t h a t  yo u  w e re  g o in g  t o  ta k e  th e

8 $ 6 ,0 0 0  o f f i c e  a llo w a n c e  i n  an a c c o u n ta b le  a c c o u n t ,  I

9 I g u e s s , i s  t h a t  y o u r  memory o f  how yo u  to o k  t h i s ?

10 MR. SYREN: A l l  r i g h t .  And I ' l l  i n s t r u c t  my c l i e n t  n o t

11 i t o  a n sw e r th e  q u e s t io n  based  on th e  F i f t h  Am endm ent.

12 HEARING OFFICER: Do you  w a n t t o  a rg u e  t h a t ,  M r . Spaan?

13 MR. SPAAN: No.

14 HEARING OFFICER: O kay. I 'm  g o in g  t o  i n t e r r u p t  f o r  one

15 se c o n d  and g iv e  an i n s t r u c t i o n  t o  th e  C o m m itte e  m em bers. M o s t

16 p e o p le  a re  u se d  t o  u n d e r s ta n d in g ,  t o  t h e  e x t e n t  t h e y  d o , t h e

17 F i f t h  Amendment p r i v i l e g e  in  th e  c o n te x t  o f  c r im in a l  c a s e s .

18 j T h is  i s  d i f f e r e n t  th a n  a c r im in a l  c a s e . I f  t h i s  w e re  a

19 c r im in a l  c a s e , yo u  w o u ld n ' t  be in fo rm e d  t h a t  t h e  p e rs o n  a ccu se d

20 t o o k  th e  F i f t h  Amendment b eca use  i t ' s  a C o n s t i t u t i o n a l  r i g h t .

21 T h e r e 's  an e x c e p t io n  on c i v i l  m a t t e r s .  W here one e x e r c is e s  th e

22 C o n s t i t u t i o n a l  r i g h t  n o t  t o  t e s t i f y ,  t h a t  i s  s o m e th in g  i n  a

23 c i v i l  c a s e , a f a c t f i n d e r  can be made aw are  o f  and yo u  can

24 c o n s id e r  t h a t  f o r  w h a te v e r  w e ig h t  you  t h i n k  i t  i s  a s  t o  th e

25 a n s w e rs  and I ' l l  i n s t r u c t  in  m ore d e t a i l  a t  th e  end o f  t h i s
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1 ca se  a f t e r  t a l k i n g  t o  b o th  la w y e rs  and g e t t i n g  s u g g e s t io n s  fro m

2 th e m . B u t i t  i s  n o t  im p ro p e r  t o  b r in g  t o  y o u r  a t t e n t i o n  t h a t  a

3 w i tn e s s  i n  a c i v i l  case  i s  t a k in g  th e  F i f t h  Am endm ent.

4 MR. SPAAN: Thank y o u .

5 BY MR. SPAAN:

6 j Q R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs , I  have  i n  f r o n t  o f  me an

7 J e x h i b i t  la b e le d  5  w h ic h  I  p u r p o r t  t o  y o u  i s  a s i g n - i n

8 l i s t  f o r  th e  R e p u b lic a n  S tra w  P o l l  f o r  D i s t r i c t  19.

9 1 Have yo u  e v e r  seen  su ch  a docum en t?

xO MR. SYREN: And I ' l l  i n s t r u c t  h im  n o t  t o  a n s w e r . I

11 a ls o  o b je c t  t o  t h i s  has n o t  been a d m it te d  i n t o  e v id e n c e ,  t h i s

12 e x h i b i t .

13 MR. SPAAN: I  was g o in g  t o  e s t a b l i s h  a fo u n d a t io n

14 j th r o u g h  R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs  t o  a d m it  i t ,  b u t  a p p a r e n t ly

15 i w e 'r e  n o t  g o in g  t o  do t h a t .

16 I HEARING OFFICER: I ' l l  o v e r r u le  th e  o b je c t io n  a s  f a r  as

17 J f o u n d a t io n .  As t o  F i f t h  Amendment p r i v i l e g e ,  do  y o u  w a n t t o

18 a rg u e  t h a t  M r. Spaan o r  move on?

19 MR. SPAAN: No.

20 Q R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs , I  have  m arked  as E x h i b i t  11 ,

21 s i r ,  w h a t p u r p o r t s  t o  be a fo rm  l e t t e r  and t h i s  i s  n o t

22 in  e v id e n c e ,  b u t  I  w a n t t o  see w h e th e r  o r  n o t  y o u  c o u ld

23 a u t h e n t ic a te  t h i s  d o cu m e n t, i t ' s  a fo rm  l e t t e r  w h ic h

24 b e a rs  t h e  d a te  o f  M arch  4 th ,  1996 w i t h  y o u r  name on i t

25 w h ic h  was s e n t  t o  p a r t i c i p a n t s  in  th e  R e p u b lic a n  S tra w
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P o l l  o f  y o u r  d i s t r i c t .  Do yo u  know a n y th in g  a b o u t t h i s  

l e t t e r ,  s i r ?

MR. SYREN: Same i n s t r u c t i o n .

HEARING OFFICER: As t o  th e  F i f t h  Amendment?

MR. SYREN: R ig h t .

HEARING OFFICER: V e ry  w e l l .

MR. SPAAN: L e t  me t r y . . . . .

HEARING OFFICER: M r. S paan, l e t ' s  h ave  t h i s  g ro u n d

r u l e  s o ...........

MR. SPAAN: O kay.

HEARING OFFICER:  we can  be m o s t e f f i c i e n t .  When

th e  o b je c t io n  i s  made, I 'm  g o in g  t o  lo o k  t o  you  t o  e i t h e r  move 

o n ...........

MR. SPAAN: O kay.

HEARING OFFICER:  o r  i f  t h e r e 's  some p a r t i c u l a r

p o in t  yo u  w a n t t o  a rg u e , you  kn o w ...........

MR. SPAAN: O kay.

HEARING OFFICER:  u se  y o u r  i n i t i a t i v e  t o  s a y  t h a t

o th e r w is e  j u s t  move o n .

BY MR. SPAAN:

Q L e t  me a s k  yo u  t h i s ,  R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs , i s  t h e r e

a n y th in g  t h a t  you  c o u ld  t e l l  t h i s  C o m m itte e  t h a t  has 

any  b e a r in g  on t h i s  l e t t e r  t h a t  y o u 'd  l i k e  t o  sa y?

MR. SYREN: Same i n s t r u c t i o n .

MR. SPAAN: W e ll ,  I  d o n ' t  —  o k a y .
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2

3

4

5

6

7

8 

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16 

17

MR. SYREN: The q u e s t io n  i s  b ro a d  enough t o ...........

HEARING OFFICER: W e l l ,  i f  you  w a n t t o  a rg u e  i t ,  M r.

S paan, a rg u e  i t .

MR. SYREN: ...........in c lu d e  j u s t  a b o u t a n y th in g  a t  a l l .

MR. SPAAN: W e l l ............

HEARING OFFICER: E x a s p e ra t io n  i s n ' t  g o in g  t o

c o m m u n ica te  m uch.

MR. SPAAN:  th e  p ro b le m  —  and l e t  me a rg u e  i t  t o

t h e  C o u r t ..........

HEARING OFFICER: Go a h e a d .

MR. SPAAN:  and i t  m ig h t  be m ore o f  a t h i n k i n g  o u t

lo u d .  I  mean th e  q u e s t io n  was t o  R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs , i s  

t h e r e  a n y th in g  t h a t  he  c o u ld  b r in g  t o  th e  C o m m it te e 's  a t t e n t i o n  

when th e y  re v ie w  t h i s  m a t te r  t h a t ' s  n o t  p r o te c t e d ,  i n  h i s  v ie w ,  

b y  th e  F i f t h  Am endm ent. And when M r. S y re n  o b je c te d ,  I  

t h o u g h t ,  w e l l ,  i f  h e 's  t a lk e d  t o  M r. S y re n  a b o u t t h a t  t h a t  

w o u ld  be p r o te c te d  b y  th e  a t t o r n e y / c l i e n t  p r i v i l e g e ,  so  I  g u e ss

18 ii I  d o n ' t  h ave  a n y th in g  t o  sa y  a b o u t  t h a t .

19

20 

21 

22

23

24

HEARING OFFICER: O kay.

MR. SPAAN: O kay.

Have y o u , o th e r  th a n  fro m  th e  a d v ic e  o f  y o u r  C o u n s e l,  

s i r ,  i d e n t i f i e d  a n y  s p e c i f i c  f e a r  o f  c r im in a l  

p r o s e c u t io n  fro m  yo u  t e s t i f y i n g  in  t h i s  m a t te r  and  i f  

—  l e t  me be c le a r ,  i f  i t  was fro m  d is c u s s io n s  w i t h

25 y o u r  C o u n s e l,  h e 's  g o in g  t o  t e l l  you  n o t  t o  a n sw e r and
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15

16

17

18
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20 

21 

22

23

24

25

so am I ,  b u t  do yo u  h ave  any in d e p e n d e n t  b a s is  o th e r  

th a n  a d v ic e  o f  C o u n s e l w h ic h  w o u ld  g iv e  you  a 

re a s o n a b le  and j u s t i f i a b l e  f e a r  o f  b e in g  p ro s e c u te d  b y  

a n s w e r in g  th e s e  q u e s t io n s .

MR. SYREN: And same i n s t r u c t i o n .  D o n 't  a n sw e r th e

q u e s t io n .  I ' d  l i k e  t o  make some o th e r  o b je c t io n s ,  t o o .

HEARING OFFICER: A l l  r i g h t .

MR. SYREN: I t ' s  v a g u e . I t ' s  o v e rb ro a d .  I  t h i n k  th e r e

m ig h t  be m ore th a n  one q u e s t io n  i n  t h e r e .

HEARING OFFICER: I  a g re e .

MR. SYREN: I t  c a l l s  f o r  s p e c u la t io n .  I t  c a l l s  f o r

l e g a l ..........

HEARING OFFICER: I ' l l  s u s ta in  i t ,  i t  was com pound and

i t  was som ewhat v a g u e . Do you  w a n t t o  be m ore s p e c i f i c  a b o u t 

w h e th e r  i t ' s  f a c t u a l  is s u e s  as t o  a b a s is  f o r  h im  —  I  c a n ' t  

t e l l  f ro m  y o u r  q u e s t io n  i f  y o u 'r e  a s k in g  i f  t h e r e  a re

f a c t u a l ..........

MR. SPAAN: O kay. L e t  me a s k  i t  t h i s  w a y ...........

BY MR. SPAAN:

Q R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs , h a ve  y o u , in d e p e n d e n t ly  fro m

y o u r  C o u n s e l, e v e r  re v ie w e d  th e  c r im in a l  co d e s  f o r  th e  

S ta te  o f  A la s k a  t o  i d e n t i f y  any p a r t i c u l a r  c r im e  t h a t  

you  m ig h t  be c o n c e rn e d  a b o u t?

MR. SYREN: Same o b je c t io n .  Y o u r H o n o r, I 'm

i n s t r u c t i n g  my c l i e n t  n o t  t o  a nsw er t h a t  q u e s t io n .  And a ls o  I

R & R C O U R T  R E P O R T E R S

810 N STREET
277-0572/Fax 27A-8982

1007 WEST THIRD AVENUE
272-7515

ANCHORAGE, ALASKA 99501 56



1 w i l l  in c lu d e  th e  o b je c t io n  t h a t  i t  c a l l s  f o r  a l e g a l  o p in io n

2 and  i t ' s  a g a in ,  va gue  and o v e rb ro a d .

3 ! MR. SPAAN: T h a t 's .............

4 HEARING OFFICER: I 'm  g o in g  t o  d e n y  t h e  o b je c t io n  on

5 I va g u e  and o v e rb ro a d .  Do yo u  w a n t t o  a d d re s s  t h e  F i f t h

6 | Amendment is s u e ?

7 MR. SPAAN: I  t h i n k  w ha t- I ' v e  a ske d  h im  i s ,  d oe s  he

8 I h a v e  an in d e p e n d e n t s o u rc e  and  i f  t h e  a n sw e r i s  n o , i t ' s  —  i t

9 ! w o u ld  be  th e  F i f t h  Amendment and t h e  a t t o r n e y / c l i e n t  p r i v i l e g e .

10 I B u t  I  t h i n k  I 'm  e n t i t l e d  t o  an a n sw e r w h e th e r  he  has  an

11 in d e p e n d e n t n o n - a t t o r n e y / c l i e n t  re a s o n  t o  a s s e r t  t h i s

12 p r i v i l e g e .

13 MR. SYREN: No, n o , h e 's  n o t  —  th e  q u e s t io n  i s  w h e th e r

14 | o r  n o t  my c l i e n t  can  a s s e r t  t h e  F i f t h  Amendment and h e 's  j u s t

15 a d m it te d  t h a t  t h i s  c l i e n t  —  t h a t  t h i s  q u e s t io n  in v a d e s  th e

16 1 F i f t h  Am endm ent.

17 ! MR. SPAAN: No.

18 HEARING OFFICER: M r. S paan , a re  y o u  t r y i n g  t o  g e t  a t

19 w h e th e r  t h e r e  i s  a re a s o n a b le  b a s is  f o r  t h e  e x e r c is e  o r ..........

20 MR. SPAAN: T h a t 's  w h a t I 'm  t r y i n g  t o ..........

21 HEARING OFFICER: ...........a re  you  t r y i n g  t o  g e t  th e  s t a t e

22 o f  m in d  o f  R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs?

23 MR. SPAAN: No, I 'm  t r y i n g  t o  g e t  w h e th e r  t h e r e  i s  a

24 re a s o n a b le  b a s is .  A nd , Y o u r H o n o r, I  d o n ' t  t h i n k  I  c o u ld  g e t

25 i t  f ro m  w h a t M r. —  I  know  I  c a n ' t  g e t  i t  f ro m  w h a t M r. S y re n
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1 d is c u s s e d  w i t h  R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs . I f  he h a s  an

2 in d e p e n d e n t b a s is  t h a t ' s  n o t  b ased  on th e  a t t o r n e y / c l i e n t

3 I p r i v i l e g e ,  I  j u s t  w a n t an a n s w e r, ye s  o r  n o .

4 1 HEARING OFFICER: W h a t 's  t h e  re le v a n c e  o f  i t ?

5 MR. SPAAN: W e l l ,  th e n  I  t h i n k  I  c o u ld  a s k  h im  f o r  th e

6 b a s is  and th e n  a s k  y o u , s i r ,  t o  d e c id e  w h e th e r  o r  n o t  i t ' s  a

7 re a s o n a b le  b a s is .

8 I MR. SYREN: Y o u r H o n o r, t h a t .............

9 HEARING OFFICER: T h e re  d oe s h a ve  t o  be a fo u n d a t io n

10 t h a t  i s  a re a s o n a b le  b a s is .  I  d o n ' t  know t h a t  t h a t  has  t o  be

11 fro m  th e  w i t n e s s 's  m outh  o r  a rg u m e n t f ro m  th e  a t t o r n e y ,  w h a t 's

12 th e  b a s is ?

13 MR. SYREN: The b a s is ,  Y o u r H o n o r, i s  t h a t  i f  —  i f

14 w h a t th e  C o m m itte e  i s  a l l e g in g  happened  d id ,  i n  f a c t ,  happened ,

15 t h i s  c o u ld  q u a l i f y  as o f f i c i a l  m is c o n d u c t.

16 MR. SPAAN: Y o u r H o n o r, I ..........

17 HEARING OFFICER: Do yo u  d is p u te  t h a t ,  M r. Spaan?

18 MR. SPAAN: Yeah.

19 MR. SYREN: I t ' s  s t e a l i n g .

20 MR. SPAAN: W e l l ,  I  h a ve  th e  o f f i c i a l  m is c o n d u c t

21 i s t a t u t e ,  Y o u r H o n o r, w i t h  t h e  C h a i r 's  p e r m is s io n ,  I ' l l  hand t o

22 | t h e  C h a ir .

23 j HEARING OFFICER: W e l l ,  even  w i t h o u t  o f f i c i a l

24 m is c o n d u c t ,  w o u ld n ' t  i t  c o n s t i t u t e  t h e f t  i f  t h e  f a c t s ,  as

25 a s s e r te d  a re  t r u e ?
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1 | MR. SPAAN: I  d o n ' t  t h i n k  s o , n o . Now, i f  i t  was a

2 I k n o w in g  v i o l a t i o n  i t  w o u ld  and t h a t ' s  why I 'm  n o t  g o in g  t o  a sk

3 1 th e  C h a ir  t o  make a r u l i n g  t h a t  t h e r e  a re  no f a c t s  w h ic h  w o u ld

4 I s u p p o r t  a p r o s e c u t io n ,  I  c a n ' t  do t h a t  and w o n 't .

5 | HEARING OFFICER: I  t h i n k  t h a t  t h e r e  i s  a re a s o n a b le

6 I b a s is  f o r  th e  e x e r c is e .  I 'm  n o t  m a k in g  an a s s u m p tio n  as t o

7 w h a t t h e  f a c t s  a r e .  I  w a n t t o  make t h a t  c le a r  t o  t h e  members 

8 | o f  t h e  C o m m itte e . I 'm  n o t  s a y in g  t h a t  t h e r e  a re  any  f a c t s

9 I e s t a b l i s h in g  t h a t  R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs  d id  a n y th in g  w ro n g .

10 I You p e o p le  d e te rm in e  th e  f a c t s  and th e  t r i a l ' s  n o t  o v e r .  B u t

11 i f  t h e  f a c t s  a re  as th e y  a re  a l le g e d ,  i t  seems t o  me t h a t  t h i s

12 w o u ld  f a l l  w i t h i n  1 1 .5 6 .8 5 0 ( a ) ( 1 )  and i t  w o u ld  f a l l  w i t h i n

13 t h e f t  s t a t u t e s .  And c e r t a i n l y  t h a t ' s  a re a s o n a b le ,  w o u ld  be a

14 re a s o n a b le  b a s is  t o  ta k e  th e  —  t o  e x e r c is e  th e  p r i v i l e g e .  The

15 j L e g is la t u r e  h a s  th e  a b i l i t y  t o  im m u n ize  a w itn e s s  i f  i t ' s

16 I u n h a p p y  w i t h  th e  e x e r c is e  o f  a p r i v i l e g e .  And I  t h i n k  t h a t

17 t h a t ' s  w h e re  t h i s  i s .  I  t h i n k  i f  yo u  w a n t t o  o b ta in

18 in f o r m a t io n  fro m  R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs  w here  h e 's  e x e r c is in g

19 I th e  F i f t h  as t o  f a c t s  i n  t h e  c h a in  o f  c a u s a t io n  to w a rd s  t h i s

20 c a s e , t h a t  he has  th e  r i g h t  t o  e x e r c is e  t h a t ,  a b s e n t im m u n ity

21 | b e in g  p r o v id e d .

22 I, MR. SPAAN: W e ll ,  w i t h  t h a t  th e n ,  M r. C h a irm a n , I  w o u ld

23 c o n c lu d e  my t e s t im o n y .  Thank y o u , R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs .

24 A Thank y o u .

25 HEARING OFFICER: D o n 't  h a n g -u p  p le a s e .  D id  any  o f  th e
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1 C o m m itte e  members —  M r. S y re n , do you  h a ve  a n y  q u e s t io n s  you

2 w a n t t o  ask?

3 MR. SYREN: I  do h a ve  a c o u p le  o f  q u e s t io n s .

4 JERRY SANDERS

5 t e s t i f i e d  as f o l lo w s  o n :

6 CROSS EXAMINATION

7 BY MR. SYREN:

8 Q R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs , c o u ld  yo u  t e l l  u s  w h e re  y o u  a re

9 to d a y ?

10 A I 'm  i n  S a n ta  F e , New M e x ic o  a t  t h e  C o u n c i l  o f  S ta te

11 G o ve rn m e n ts , W e s te rn  D iv i s io n .

12 Q When d oes t h a t  c o n fe re n c e  b e g in ?

13 A I t  b e g in s  to m o rro w .

14 Q And w h a t s p e a k e rs  a re  yo u  g o in g  t o  h e a r  fro m ?

15 A Oh, t h e r e ' l l  be  s e v e r a l .  O n e 's  g o in g  t o  be  S e n a to r  T im

16 K e l l y  fro m  A la s k a  t a l k i n g  a b o u t f i s h i n g  and  re s o u r c e s .

17 j B u t R o d r ic o  Penz (p h ) i s  g o in g  t o  be t a l k i n g  a b o u t

18 | t r a n s p o r t a t i o n  i n  t h e  w e s te rn  s t a t e s .  W e ' l l  h ave

19 s e s s io n s  on w e l f a r e  r e fo r m  and te le c o m m u n ic a t io n s  and

20 how th e  '9 6  e le c t io n s  a re  g o in g  t o  e f f e c t  th e  w e s te rn

21 | s t a t e s ,  managed h e a l t h  c a re ,  w a te r  i n  th e  w e s te rn

22 s t a t e s ,  j u s t  t h in g s  l i k e  t h a t .

23 Q And i t ' s  my u n d e rs ta n d in g  t h a t  yo u  p u rc h a s e d  —  made

24 j y o u r  r e s e r v a t io n s  on o r  a b o u t S e p te m b e r 3 0 th  o f  t h i s

25 : y e a r  f o r  t h i s  c o n fe re n c e ;  i s  t h a t  r i g h t ?
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A I  g o t  th e  t i c k e t s  th e n .  We made a l l  th e  a rra n g e m e n ts

2 a ro u n d  th e  m id d le  o f  S ep tem ber and th e  t i c k e t s  and th e

3 c o n f i r m a t io n s  came i n  a ro u n d  th e  l a s t  —  a ro u n d  th e

4 3 0 th .

5 Q O kay.

6 I MR. SYREN: No f u r t h e r  q u e s t io n s .

7 HEARING OFFICER: A ny f o l lo w - u p ,  M r. Spaan?

8 MR. SPAAN: L e t  me ch e c k  w i t h  Ms. B a r n e t t .  S u z i

9 B a r n e t t  had  a q u e s t io n  o f  R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs  r e g a r d in g  a

10 p r o c e d u r a l  m anner w i t h  th e  C h a i r 's  p e r m is s io n .

11 I MS. BARNETT: I  j u s t  w a n ted  t o  know i f  R e p r e s e n ta t iv e

12 j S a n d e rs  w a n te d  t o  c o n t in u e  t o  l i s t e n  i n  t o  th e  h e a r in g  and

13 | t h e r e f o r e  w e ' l l  p u t  i t  on m ute  o r  i f  h e 's  g o in g  t o  h a n g -u p .

14 I MR. SYREN: I  t h i n k  h e 's  p r e p a r in g  f o r  th e

15 I c o n fe r e n c e ..........

16 HEARING OFFICER: W e l l ,  a f t e r  h e ..........

17 j MR. SYREN:  and —  a f t e r  h e , you  know , f in i s h e s

18 q u e s t io n s .

1 9 | HEARING OFFICER:  d o n ' t  h a n g -u p  y e t ,  I  w a n t t o

20 g iv e  th e  C o m m itte e  members a ch a n ce . Do any  o f  th e  C o m m itte e

21 i m em bers w is h  t o  a sk  q u e s t io n s .

22 JERRY SANDERS

23 t e s t i f i e d  as f o l l o w s  o n :

24 INQUIRY

25 BY MS. MCCOY:

I
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1 Q R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S anders?

2 A Y es.

3 Q S h i r l e y  McCoy h e re .  I  was j u s t  c u r io u s ,  you  knew t h a t

4 th e  h e a r in g s  w e re  g o in g  t o  be s c h e d u le d  f o r  to d a y  and

5 yo u  made y o u r  a rra n g e m e n ts  f o r  t h i s  t r i p  a f t e r  t h a t  was

6 s la te d ?

7 A No. I  t h i n k  th e  s c h e d u le s  f o r  to d a y  was som etim e  in

8 th e  m id d le  o f  O c to b e r .

9 [ Q O kay. Can y o u ............

10 A I ' d  had my t i c k e t s  and e v e r y th in g  f o r  a b o u t tw o  weeks

11 | b e fo r e  th e y  s e t  t h i s  d a te .

12 Q Do you  f e e l  t h e r e 's  j u s t i f i c a t i o n s  t o  th e  a l le g a t io n s

13 t h a t  y o u 'v e  been c h a rg e d  w i t h  by th e  C om m ittee?

14 MR. SYREN: A l l  r i g h t .  And I ' l l  i n s t r u c t  my c l i e n t  n o t

15 t o  a n sw e r t h a t  q u e s t io n  based on th e  F i f t h  Am endm ent.

16 HEARING OFFICER: I  w i l l  s u s ta in  t h a t  o b je c t io n .

17 MS. MCCOY: O kay.

18 HEARING OFFICER: Go ahead .

19 | Q One o th e r  q u e s t io n  t h e n ............
I

20 HEARING OFFICER: D o n 't  be h e s i t a n t  t o  a sk  q u e s t io n s

21 b e ca u se  o b je c t io n s  a re  made.

22 ! MS. MCCOY: o k a y .

23 BY MS. MCCOY:

24 Q Do you  f e e l ,  R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs , t h a t  y o u 'r e

25 s e r v in g  y o u r  c o n s t i t u e n c y  w e l l  by a d d re s s in g  e v e r y th in g
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1 I on th e  F i f t h ?

2 | MR. SYREN: A l l  r i g h t .  And I ' l l  i n s t r u c t  my c l i e n t  n o t

3 I t o  a n sw e r t h a t  based on th e  F i f t h  Am endm ent. A ls o  I  r a is e  th e  

4 | o b je c t io n  t h a t  i t ' s  a rg u m e n ta t iv e .

5 I HEARING OFFICER: Do you  w a n t t o  be h e a rd , M r. Spaan?

6 | MR. SPAAN: I  t h i n k  i t  was a p ro p e r  q u e s t io n .  I  t h i n k

7 | i f  he r a is e s  th e  F i f t h  Amendment t h a t  ends i t  —  w e l l ,  I 'm  n o t

8 II s u re  w h e th e r  t h a t  answ e r w o u ld  te n d  t o  in c r im in a t e ,  t o  t e l l  you

9 I th e  t r u t h .  I  d o n ' t  t h in k  t h e r e 's  a re a s o n a b le  b a s is  t o  g iv e

10 |l t h a t  i n s t r u c t i o n .

11 || HEARING OFFICER: I  am g o in g  t o  o v e r r u le  th e  o b je c t io n

12 || as  t o  t h a t  q u e s t io n .

13 || MR. SYREN: What a b o u t th e  - - th e r  o b je c t io n ,  Y o u r H o n o r.

14 I, T h is  i s  a rg u m e n ta t iv e  and I  g u e ss  I  w o u ld  a ls o  q u e s t io n  w h e th e r

15 ! o r  n o t  i t ' s  r e le v a n t .  T o d a y , w e 'r e  h e re  t o  d e c id e  w h e th e r  o r

16 j n o t  R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a nd e rs  b ro k e  th e  la w . W e 're  n o t  in t e r e s te d
I t t

17 || i n  w h e th e r  o r  n o t  he t h in k s  t h i s  s e rv e s  h is  c o n s t i t u e n t s .

18 || HEARING OFFICER: W e l l ,  I  t h i n k  th e  C o m m itte e  i s

19 I c h a rg e d  w i t h  tw o  f u n c t io n s .  One, t o  d e te rm in e  w h e th e r he has 

2 0 | c o m m itte d  an e t h i c a l  v i o l a t i o n  and th e  second  f u n c t io n  i s  w h a t 

21 th e y  s h o u ld  do i f  he h a s . And I  t h in k  th e r e  may be some

22

23

24

25

r e le v a n c e  t o  t h a t  q u e s t io n  t o  t h a t .

MR. SYREN: I 'm  n o t  s u re  I  see th e  c o n n e c t io n  be tw een

th o s e  q u e s t io n s  and w h e th e r  o r  n o t  he b e l ie v e s  h e 's  s e r v in g  h is  

c o n s t i t u e n t s .
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1 HEARING OFFICER: By th e  e x e r c is e  o f  th e  F i f t h

2 Amendment?

3 MR. SYREN: R ig h t .  I 'm  n o t  s u re  I  see t h e ...........

4 HEARING OFFICER: I  t h i n k  i t ' s  a p ro p e r  q u e s t io n  g iv e n

5 th e  f a c t  t h a t  th e  C o m m itte e  h a s  t o  d e c id e  w h a t t o  d o . And one

6 o f  th e  t h in q s  t h a t  th e  C o m m itte e  i s  c h a rg e d  w i t h  c o n s id e r in g  i s

7 th e  r e s p o n d e n t 's  c o o p e r a t io n  i n  t h e  i n v e s t ig a t io n .

8 MR. SYREN: W e ll ,  Y o u r H o n o r, I  t h i n k ,  w i t h  a l l  due

9 r e s p e c t ,  I ' d  l i k e  t o  ta k e  a b re a k  and ta k e  t h i s  up w i t h  a n o th e r

10 b o d y . Once R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs  w a iv e s  h is  r i g h t ,  i t ' s  gone , |

11 j i t ' s  o u t  th e  w ind ow . And a t  t h i s  p o in t ,  r a t h e r  th a n  have  th e

12 t r a i n s  go b y , I ' d  l i k e  t o  a p p e a l t h i s  beca use  I  f e e l  t h a t ,  we

13 ! j u s t  s to p  e v e r y th in g  r i g h t  now and we can re a s s e m b le  a t  a n o th e r

14 ! t im e .  B u t I  c a n ' t  l e t  h im  a n sw e r t h a t  q u e s t io n  in  good

15 J c o n s c io u s  based  on my c o n c e rn s  a b o u t th e  F i f t h  Amendment.

16 HEARING OFFICER: W e l l ,  I ..........

17 MR. SYREN: P a r t  o f  th e  p ro b le m  i s  w i t h  th e  q u e s t io n ,

18 th e  o th e r  p a r t  i s  th e  answ e r may open th e  d o o r t o  o th e r  a re a s

19 th e  way i t ' s  —  i t ' s  so b ro a d  and open ended .

20 HEARING OFFICER: W e l l ,  I  w i l l  b re a k  f o r  a fe w  moments

21 i f  you  w a n t t o  t a l k  t o  h im  p r i v a t e l y  b e fo r e  he a nsw e rs  th e

22 j q u e s t io n ,  b u t  I  t h i n k  i t ' s  an a p p r o p r ia te  q u e s t io n  and I ' l l

23 I le a v e  i t  up t o  th e  C o m m itte e  i f  th e y  w a n t t o  w ith d ra w  th e

24 q u e s t io n .  B u t,  I  mean i t ' s  a tw o - fa c e te d  p ro c e e d in g .  The

25 C o m m itte e  needs to  d e c id e  w h a t t o  d o . I  t h in k  i t  was a
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MR. SYREN: I  u n d e rs ta n d  and we ta k e  e x c e p t io n ,  Y our

H o n o r. And a t  t h i s  p o in t ,  I  t h in k  t h a t  th e  t h in g  t o  do i s  t o

ta k e  i t  t o  a h ig h e r  b o d y .

HEARING OFFICER: To w hat?  The C o u r t 's  a lr e a d y  s a id  i t

d o e s n ' t  h ave  any j u r i s d i c t i o n  o v e r  t h i s  p ro c e e d in g .

MR. SYREN: W e 've  a c t u a l l y  f i l e d  a p e t i t i o n  t o  th e

Suprem e C o u r t  —  a m o t io n  f o r  e x te n s io n  o f  t im e  t o  f i l e  a 

p e t i t i o n  w i t h  th e  Supreme C o u r t and we can do t h a t  as w e l l .

HEARING OFFICER: W e ll ,  you  can  i n s t r u c t  h im  n o t  t o

a n s w e r. I f  t h a t ' s  w h a t y o u r  i n s t r u c t i o n  i s ..........

MR. SYREN: I t  i s .

HEARING OFFICER:  I 'm  g o in g  t o  o v e r r u le  th e

o b je c t io n .  And i f  som ebody moves me t o  do s o m e th in g , I ' l l  

c o n s id e r  i t ,  b u t  a l l  I  can  do i s  o v e r r u le  th e  o b je c t io n .

MR. SYREN: I  u n d e rs ta n d .  And I 'm  s t i l l  g o in g  t o

i n s t r u c t  my c l i e n t  n o t  t o  a n sw e r.

HEARING OFFICER: O kay. Do you  have  f u r t h e r  q u e s t io n s ?

H e 's  n o t  g o in g  t o  answ er th e  q u e s t io n .

MS. MCCOY: I  g u e ss  n o t .

HEARING OFFICER: O kay.

MS. MCCOY: T h a n ks .

HEARING OFFICER: A re  th e r e  o th e r  q u e s t io n s  by

C o m m itte e  members?

REPRESENTATIVE TOOHEY: Thank y o u . I  j u s t  h ave  a
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1 c l a r i f i c a t i o n .  One o f  th e  q u e s t io n s  a sked  t o  R e p r e s e n ta t iv e

2 S a nd e rs  was c o n c e rn in g  a p ie c e  o f  m a i l  t h a t  we h ave  in  f r o n t  o f

3 u s  s ig n e d  by R e p re s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs . I 'm  a l i t t l e  l e f t  o u t  i n

4 th e  d a rk  on why we have  t h i s  and he  w o n 't  a n sw e r th e  q u e s t io n

5 on th e  l e t t e r  i t s e l f  when we have  i t  i n  f r o n t  o f  u s .  I s

6 t h a t ..........

7 HEARING OFFICER: W e l l ..........

8 REPRESENTATIVE TOOHEY: P le a s e , I 'm  a n e o p h y te .

9 HEARING OFFICER: W e l l ,  a s k  h im  a q u e s t io n  and see  i f

10 he answ e rs .

11 REPRESENTATIVE TOOHEY: Good.

12 I JERRY SANDERS

13 t e s t i f i e d  as f o l lo w s  on:

14 ; INQUIRY

15 BY REPRESENTATIVE TOOHEY:

16 Q R e p re s e n ta t iv e  S anders?  H e llo ?

17 A H e l lo .

18 J Q Yes. We have  a l e t t e r ............

19 MR. SYREN: Excuse me, R e p r e s e n ta t iv e ,  c o u ld  you

20 i d e n t i f y  y o u r s e l f .

21 ! REPRESENTATIVE TOOHEY: I 'm  s o r r y .

22 I Q R e p re s e n ta t iv e  Toohey h e re .  R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs , we

23 have a l e t t e r  h e re  d a te d  M arch 4 th  w i t h  th e  A la s k a

24 * S ta te  L e g is la t u r e  le t t e r h e a d  w i t h  y o u r  name on i t .

25 I t ' s  a d d re s s e d  t o  no one and i t  i s  l e f t  b la n k  and i t ' s
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1 s ig n e d  b y  you  c o n g r a t u la t in g  p e o p le  f o r  a t te n d in g  th e  

s t r a w  p o l l  and v o t in g .  Can you  —  do you  rem em ber t h a t  

l e t t e r ?

MR. SYREN: O kay. And I ' l l  i n s t r u c t  my c l i e n t  n o t  t o

a nsw er t h a t  q u e s t io n .

HEARING OFFICER: I ' l l  s u s ta in  t h a t  o b je c t io n .  He

w o u ld  h ave  th e  r i g h t ,  i f  he h a s  a good f a i t h  b e l i e f  t h a t  t h a t  

may in c r im in a t e  h im  t o  n o t  a n sw e r.

REPRESENTATIVE TOOHEY: Thank y o u . No f u r t h e r

q u e s t io n s .

HEARING OFFICER: Do o th e r  C o m m itte e  members have  any

q u e s t io n s ?  M r. Donahue?

MR. DONAHUE: I  h ave  a q u e s t io n  I  w a n t t o  ask b e fo re  

h e 's  o f f  th e  l i n e ,  b u t  i t  has t o  do w i t h ,  d id  someone h e re  say 

t h a t  t h e r e  was some m ethod  w here  he c o u ld  —  th e  C om m ittee  o r  

someone c o u ld  sa y  t h a t  th e y  w o u ld n t  ta k e  c h a rg e s  a g a in s t  h im  

i n  a c r im in a l  ca se  i f  he w o u ld  answ er th e  q u e s t io n s  and we 

c o u ld  g e t  h im  t o  n o t  t o  th e  F i f t h ?  I s  th e r e  some m echanism , 

d id  I  h e a r  t h a t  be s a id  h e re  som etim e?

HEARING OFFICER: I  s a id  t h a t .  T h e re  i s  a s t a t u t e

w h ic h  p r o v id e s  t h a t  a House o f  th e  L e g is la t u r e  can im m un ize  a 

w itn e s s  b y  a —  by th e  C o m m itte e  —  my u n d e rs ta n d in g  i s  t h a t  

th e  C o m m itte e  c o u ld  n o t  do i t  by i t s e l f .  I t  w o u ld  r e q u i r e  a 

r e s o lu t i o n  o f  th e  H ouse. I t  w o u ld  be A .S . 2 4 .2 5 .0 7 0  and i t  

w o u ld  p r o h i b i t  f u t u r e  c r im in a l  p r o s e c u t io n ,  i t ' d  be b in d in g  on
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1 th e  e x e c u t iv e  b ra n c h , b u t  i t  w o u ld  r e q u i r e  a r e s o lu t io n  o f  th e

2 H ouse . And i f  t h a t  w e re  done , th e n  a w itn e s s  w o u ld  have  no

3 r i g h t  t o  n o t  a nsw e r q u e s t io n s  based  on th e  F i f t h  Am endm ent.

4 I t ' s  s i m i l a r  t o  w h a t happens in  any p r o s e c u t io n  w here  t h a t  i s

5 u se d  in  th e  e x e c u t iv e  b ra n c h .

6 MR. DONAHUE: Thank y o u . I  a p p r e c ia te  th e

7 c l a r i f i c a t i o n .  And, o f  c o u rs e , n o t  b e in g  f a m i l i a r  w i t h

8 c r im in a l  t r i a l s  and when p e o p le  ta k e  th e  F i f t h  and d o n ' t ,  I  was

9 lo o k in g  f o r  a way —  I  have  a c o n c e rn  in  w a n t in g  t o  h e a r  w h a t

10 R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S anders  has t o  sa y  and I ' d  l i k e  t o  a sk  a

11 q u e s t io n  t h a t  w o u ld  g e t  h im  t o  t e l l  us s o m e th in g . And t h a t ' s  a

12 p r e c u r s o r y  t o  t r y  t o  j u s t i f y  my q u e s t io n .

13 JERRY SANDERS

14 t e s t i f i e d  as f o l lo w s :

15 j INQUIRY

16 BY MR. DONAHUE:

17 Q R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs , t h i s  i s  Joe  D onahue.

18 A Yeah, J o e .

19 | Q I s  t h e r e  a n y th in g  you  w is h  t o  t e l l  th e  C o m m itte e?

20 | MR. SYREN: Same o b je c t io n .  Y our H o n o r, and n o t  o n ly

21 j t h a t ,  b u t  a ske d  and a n sw e red . I t ' s  g e t t i n g  t o  th e  p o in t  o f

22 j a c t u a l l y  h a ra s s m e n t, I  t h in k  a t  t h i s  p o in t .

23 HEARING OFFICER: W e ll ,  I  t h i n k ........

24 I MR. SYREN: We r e a l l y  need t o  move o n . W e 're  s o r t  o f

25 w h ip p in g  a dead h o rs e  h e re ,  I  t h i n k  and i t ' s  t im e  t o  move on .
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HEARING OFFICER: T h a t q u e s t io n  i s  s u f f i c i e n t l y  b ro a d

t h a t  th e r e  may be t h in g s  n o t  w i t h in  th e  p r i v i l e g e  t h a t  he may 

w a n t t o  s a y . I f  you  i n s t r u c t  h im  n o t  t o  a n sw e r i t ,  you  know , 

w e ' l l  move on .

MR. SYREN: I  have  in s t r u c t e d  h im  n o t  t o  a n sw e r.

HEARING OFFICER: A l l  r i g h t .  Any o th e r  q u e s t io n s ?

T h a t w i l l  —  do you  have  any f o l lo w - u p ,  M r. Spaan?

MR. SPAAN: No.

HEARING OFFICER: M r. S y re n , any fo l lo w - u p ?

MR. SYREN: No.

HEARING OFFICER: T h a t w i l l  c o n c lu d e  y o u r  te s t im o n y ,

R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs , th a n k  you f o r  b e in g  a v a i la b le .

A Thank y o u .

HEARING OFFICER: Now, Ms. B a r n e t t ,  you  w ere  d o in g

s o m e th in g  w i t h  th e  p h o n e s .

MS. BARNETT: R e p re s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs , w o u ld  you l i k e  t o

s ta y  on and l i s t e n  o r  w o u ld  you  —  a re  you g o in g  t o  h an g -u p ?

A No, t h a t ' s  f i n e .  I ' v e  g o t  some t h in g s  I  need t o  g e t

d o n e .

MS. BARNETT: o k a y , th a n k  y o u .

HEARING OFFICER: Thank y o u . M r. Spaan, y o u r  n e x t

w i t n e s s .

MR. SPAAN: Yeah. I f  I  c o u ld  have  one second  w i t h  Ms.

B a r n e t t ,  I  was g o in g  t o  c a l l  M r. Woods and I  t h i n k  h e 's  

o u t ..........
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MS. BARNETT: I  can go g e t  h im .

MR. JACOBUS: L in d a  McKay i s  a ls o  h e re .

MR. SPAAN: G re a t.

HEARING OFFICER: W ould  you  re m a in  s ta n d in g ,  s i r ,  f o r  a

m om ent.

MR. WOODS: O kay, s u re .

HEARING OFFICER: W h a t's  y o u r  name, s i r ?

MR. WOODS: My name i s  E rn e s t  Woods.

HEARING OFFICER: O kay. W ould you  r a is e  y o u r  r i g h t

h a n d , p le a s e .

(O a th  a d m in is te r e d )

MR. WOODS: I  d o .

HEARING OFFICER: O kay, p le a s e  be s e a te d .

ERNEST WOODS

c a l le d  as a w itn e s s  on b e h a l f  o f  th e  C o m m itte e , t e s t i f i e s  as 

f o l l o w s  o n :

DIRECT EXAMINATION

HEARING OFFICER: I ' v e  a lr e a d y  asked  you  w h a t y o u r  name

i s ,  c o u ld  yo u  t e l l  me y o u r  m a i l in g  a d d re s s , p le a s e ?

A I t ' s  3457 E a s t 6 7 th  A venue .

HEARING OFFICER: And y o u r  o c c u p a t io n ,  s i r ?

A I 'm  a c o n t r a c t  s p e c i a l i s t .

HEARING OFFICER: O kay. And th e  a d d re s s  you gave  u s ,
I

i s  t h a t  i n  A n ch o ra g e ?

A Y es, i t  i s .
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1 HEARING OFFICER: Thank y o u , s i r .  M r. Spaan.

2 MR. SPAAN: Thank y o u , Y o u r H o n o r.

3 BY MR. SPAAN:

4 Q M r . Wood............

5 A W ith  an S.

6 Q I s  i t  W oods, I 'm  s o r r y ,  o k a y . W her'' a re  yo u  em p loyed

7 as a c o n t r a c t  s p e c ia l i s t ?

8 A A t  th e  Arm y C orp o f  E n g in e e rs .

9 I Q Do you  know an i n d i v i d u a l  b y  th e  name o f  M r. M ike

10 j M i l l e r ?

11 A I  d o .

12 | Q And do you  know w h e th e r o r  n o t  M r. M i l l e r  made a

13 1 c o m p la in t  a g a in s t  R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S anders?

14 i A I  b e l ie v e  he t o l d  me he d id .

15 Q On o r  a b o u t some t im e  M arch  5 th  o r  a f te r w a r d s ,  d id  you

16 r e c e iv e  a l e t t e r  a d d re s s e d  t o  y o u , s i r ,  fro m

17 R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S anders?

18 I MR. SYREN: O b je c t io n .  Y o u r H o n o r, t h i s  i s  o u ts id e  th e

19 j scope  o f  h is  k n o w le d g e . I  t h i n k  he  can t e s t i f y

20 i HEARING OFFICER: I 'm  g o in g  t o  s u s ta in  th e  o b je c t io n .

21 MR. SPAAN: I  asked  h im  i f  he re c e iv e d  th e  l e t t e r ,  n o t

22 M r. M i l l e r .

23 HEARING OFFICER: I  u n d e rs ta n d ..........

24 ! MR. SYREN: No, fro m  R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs .

25 HEARING OFFICER:  t h a t .  You can  a sk  h im  w h a t th e
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l e t t e r  s a id ,  w h a t i t  s a id  on i t ,  he d o e s n 't  know who p h y s ic a l l y

m a ile d  i t ,  I  t h i n k  was th e  b a s is  o f  th e  o b je c t io n .

MR. SPAAN: I 'm  s o r r y ,  o k a y .

Q D id  yo u  r e c e iv e  a l e t t e r  t h a t  p u rp o r te d  t o  be fro m

R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs  som etim e  a f t e r  M arch  4 th ,  1996?

A Y e s .

Q D id  y o u , s i r ,  in  J a n u a ry  o f  1996 a t te n d  a R e p u b lic a n

s t r a w  p o l l?

A Y es, I  d id .

Q And w h e re  was t h a t  h e ld ?

A T h a t was a t  th e  A b b o t t  Loop Com m unity C hurch  o r  t h in g

th e r e  a t  th e  c o rn e r  o f  A b b o t t  Loop and Lake O t is .

Q And w h a t d i s t r i c t ,  s i r ,  was t h i s  f o r ,  was i t  f o r  a l l  o f

A n ch o ra g e ?

A I 'm  n o t  s u re .

Q D id  you  have  an o p p o r t u n i t y ,  s i r ,  t o  s ig n - in  a t  t h a t

p o l l ?

A I  d id .
I

Q And w h a t d id  th e  s i g n - i n  l i s t  —  w h a t in f o r m a t io n  d id

you  p r o v id e  when you  s ig n e d  in ?

A B a s ic a l l y  my m a i l in g  a d d re s s , my name.

Q I 'm  g o in g  t o  hand y o u , M r. Wood ( s i c ) ,  w h a t 's  been

m arke d  as E x h ib i t  6 and ask you  to  lo o k  a t  th e  p o r t io n  

w h ic h  i s  a l e t t e r ,  i t ' s  a b o u t tw o  pages in  t h a t  was 

m arked  —  t h a t  was a d d re s s e d  t o  yo u .
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1 MR. SPAAN: M r. W h ite ,  th e  r e : r t  o f  th e  e x h i b i t  i s  th e

2 c o m p la in t  w h ic h  th e  C om m ittee  a lr e a d y  has a t ta c h e d  t o  t h e i r

3 m a t e r ia l ,  th e y  may have  t h i s  l e t t e r  as w e l l .

4 MS. BARNETT: They d o .

5 Q Do you  re c o g n iz e  th e  l e t t e r  t h a t ' s  c o n ta in e d  in  E x h ib i t

C 6?

7 A Y es, I  d o .

8 Q D id  you  r e c e iv e  t h a t  l e t t e r ?

9 A Y es, I  d id .

10 Q And why d o n ' t  you  j u s t  re a d  i t  t o  th e  C o m m itte e , i t ' s  a

11 i s h o r t  l e t t e r .

12 | A O kay. I t  s a y s , A la s k a  S ta te  L e g is la t o r  C ha irm an

13 E conom ic D e ve lo pm e n t C o m m itte e , R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs ,

14 D i s t r i c t  19 . I t  goes o n , i t ' s  d a te d  M arch  th e  4 th ,

15 a d d re s s e d  t o  me, i t  s a y s , D ear E rn e s t ,  I  w o u ld  l i k e  t o

16 ta k e  t h i s  o p p o r tu n i t y  t o  th a n k  you  f o r  y o u r

17 p a r t i c i p a t i o n  in  th e  f i r s t  p r e s id e n t i a l  s t ra w  p o l l  t o

18 be h e ld  in  A la s k a .  N o t o n ly  have  we b ro k e n  new g ro u n d

19 h i s t o r i c a l l y ,  p o l i t i c a l l y  we have  g a in e d  p r e s t ig e  on

20 th e  n a t io n a l  l e v e l .  I t  was e x c i t in g  t o  le a r n  t h a t

21 | D i s t r i c t  1 9 's  p a r t i c i p a t i o n  was among th e  s t r o n g e s t

22 a re a s  t o  go o u t  and c a s t  a v o te  f o r  a p r e s id e n t i a l

23 c a n d id a te .  W ith  th e  in c le m e n t  w e a th e r  t o  d e a l w i t h ,  I

24 r e a l l y  a p p re c ia te  th e  i n t e r e s t  shown by my f e l l o w

25 R e p u b lic a n s .  S e e in g  a l o t  o f  you  i n  th e  h a l l s  o f  th e
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p o l l i n g  s t a t i o n  w i t h in  my d i s t r i c t  was in d e e d  a 

p le a s u r e .  I f  I  d i d n ' t  g e t  a chance  t o  t a l k  w i t h  y o u , 

p le a s e  a c c e p t my a p o lo g y . I  h a ve  a lw a y s  h e ld  in  h ig h  

r e g a r d  th o s e  p e o p le  who w i l l  go t h a t  e x t r a  m i le  t o  do 

w h a t i s  needed . T a k in g  th e  t im e  o u t  o f  y o u r  busy  

s c h e d u le  t o  f u l f i l l  y o u r  c i v i c  d u ty  i s  g r e a t l y  

a p p r e c ia te d .  W ith  warm re g a rd s ,  I  re m a in  J e r r y ,  

R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  J e r r y  S anders  i s  who s ig n e d  i t .

MR. SPAAN: I  move 6 , M r. W h ite .

HEARING OFFICER: Any o b je c t io n ?
I

MR. SYREN: No.

HEARING OFFICER: S ix  w i l l  be a d m it te d .
|

{C o m m itte e 's  E x h ib i t  6 a d m it te d )

D id  yo u  t a l k  w i t h  R e p re s e n ta t iv e  S and e rs  a t  th e  s t ra w  

p o l l  t h a t  was h e ld  in  J a n u a ry  o f  1996?

No, I  d id  n o t .

Do you  know who ra n  th e  s t ra w  p o l l?

No.

O kay. What was y o u r  r e a c t io n  when you  g o t  t h i s  l e t t e r ?

I  th o u g h t  i t  was n ic e  t o  g e t  th e  l e t t e r  and th e n  I  

n o te d  on Page 2 h e re  o f  t h i s ,  t h a t  i t  was s e n t  fro m  

Ju n e a u , A la s k a .  I  d o n ' t  know whose p o s ta g e  —  who p a id  

th e  p o s ta g e  on i t ,  b u t  anyway I  was —  I  th o u g h t  i t  was 

n ic e  t o  g e t  th e  l e t t e r .

W hat was th e  o f f i c i a l  b u s in e s s  t h a t  was co n ve ye d  t o  you
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MR. SYREN: O b je c t io n .  O b je c t io n ,  Y o u r H o n o r.

HEARING OFFICER: S u s ta in e d .

MR. SPAAN: O kay. I  h ave  n o th in g  f u r t h e r  M r. Woods.

HEARING OFFICER: M r. S y re n .

ERNEST WOODS

t e s t i f i e d  as f o l lo w s  o n :

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. SYREN:

Q M r. W oods, my name i s  Les S y re n , I  r e p r e s e n t

f ro m  t h i s  l e t t e r ?

11 R e p r e s e n ta t iv e  S a n d e rs  in  t h i s  m a t te r .

12 A Um-hum. ( A f f i r m a t i v e )

13 Q I 'm  g o in g  t o  a sk  yo u  a c o u p le  o f  q u e s t io n s  a b o u t t h a t

14 l e t t e r .  I f  yo u  d o n ' t  u n d e rs ta n d  th e  q u e s t io n  t h a t  I

15 a s k , i f  you  c o u ld  j u s t  ask  me t o  r e p e a t  i t  o r ...........

16 HEARING OFFICER: M r. S y re n , I  know y o u 'r e  s ta n d in g

17 t h e r e  fa c in g  h im , b u t  you  need  t o  speak up lo u '"  enough so we

18 can  h e a r  you  o v e r  h e re .

19 MR. SYREN: O kay.

20 Q I f  I  sa y  s o m e th in g  t h a t  you  d o n ' t  u n d e rs ta n d ,  j u s t  —

21 w i l l  you  a sk  me t o  r e p e a t  i t  o r  a sk  i t  i n  a d i f f e r e n t

22 m anner?

23 A S u re .

24 Q Thank y o u .

25 A Um-hum. ( A f f i r m a t i v e )
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A l l  r i g h t .  You d o n ' t  know , based  on p e rs o n a l 

k n o w le d g e , who s e n t  t h i s  l e t t e r ;  i s  t h a t  r i g h t ?

No. I  d o n ' t  have  any p e rs o n a l k n o w le d g e , b u t  I  do have 

h is  s ig n a tu r e  h e re .

B u t you  d o n ' t  know who s e n t  i t ,  r i g h t ?

No, I  d o n ' t  know .

A l l  r i g h t .  Do you  know who s ig n e d  i t ?

I  d o n ' t  know p e r s o n a l ly .

O kay. Do you  know who p a id  f o r  i t  t o  have i t  s e n t  o u t?

I  t h i n k  t h a t  th e  p o s ta g e  on th e  l e t t e r  sa ys  i t  came

fro m  Ju n e a u , A la s k a .  I  d o n ' t  know whose a c c o u n t t h a t  

i s  on t h a t .

Have you  e v e r  c o m p la in e d  t o  a nyb od y a b o u t t h i s  l e t t e r ?

No. I  d i d n ' t  c o m p la in .
:

So you  d i d n ' t  c o m p la in  t o  J e r r y  S a n d e rs  a b o u t i t ;  i s  

t h a t  r i g h t ?
||

No.

A l l  r i g h t .  I 'm  g o in g  t o  a sk  you a b o u t s o m e th in g  t h a t
I

happened l a s t  Ju n e , a b o u t l a s t  Ju ne  and see i f  you

rem em ber t h i s .  T h e re  was some a r t i c l e s  in  th e  p a p e r

a b o u t G o ve rn o r Tony K now les w r i t i n g  some w o rd s  on 

lo n g e v i t y  bon’ se s  and th o s e  lo n g e v i t y  bonuses w e re  s e n t  

o u t  t o  c e r t a in  p e o p le  who r e c e iv e d  th o s e  c h e c k s  and 

caused  q u i t e  a s t i r ,  do you  rem em ber a n y th in g  a b o u t 

th a t?
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Q O kay. W ould i t  s u r p r is e  you t o  t h a t  he had done

s o m e th in g  l i k e  t h a t?

MR. SPAAN: Y o u r H o n o r, I  o b je c t  t o  C o u n se l t e s t i f y i n g .  

MR. SYREN: I  h a v e n ' t  t e s t i f i e d ,  I ' v e  asked  a g u e s t io n ,  

w h e th e r  o r  n o t  i t  w o u ld  s u r p r is e  h im .

MR. SPAAN: W hich  w a s ..........

HEARING OFFICER: Why i s  i t  r e le v a n t  t h a t  i t  w o u ld

s u r p r is e  t h i s  g e n tle m a n  w h e th e r  t h a t  was done o r  n o t?

MR. SYREN: I  t h in k  w h a t I 'm  g e t t i n g  a t ,  Y o u r H o n o r, i s

t h a t ..........

HEARING OFFICER: Y o u 'r e  g e t t i n g  a t  a rg u in g .

MR. SYREN: Ho, I 'm  n o t .  I ' d  l i k e  t o  have  h is  o p in io n  

a b o u t t h i s  a c t i v i t y .

HEARING OFFICER: B u t why i s  h is  o p in io n  r e le v a n t?

W ith  due r e s p e c t ,  s i r ,  I  mean why i s  h is  o p in io n  r e le v a n t  t o

any is s u e  in  t h i s  case?

MR. SYREN: W e l l ,  h e 's  th e  one who re c e iv e d  th e  l e t t e r ,

Y o u r H o n o r.

HEARING OFFICER: I t ' s  i r r e l e v a n t .  S u s ta in e d .

MR. SYREN: No f u r t h e r  q u e s t io n s ,  Y ou r H o n o r.

HEARING OFFICER: J u s t  as I  w o u ld n 't  l e t  M r. Spaan ask

h im  w h a t th e  o f f i c i a l  p u rp o s e  o f  th e  l e t t e r  i s ,  i t ' s ..........

MR. SYREN: I, u n d e rs ta n d .  We ta k e  e x c e p t io n ,  b u t  I

A N o.

25 h ave  no f u r t h e r  q u e s t io n s .
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1 HEARING OFFICER: The t i t  f o r  t a t  e v id e n t ia r y  r u l e .

2 MR. SPAAN: F a i r  enough .

3 HEARING OFFICER: Do members o f  th e  C om m ittee  have  any

4 q u e s t io n s ?

5 CHAIRMAN MAC N E ILLE : I  h ave  one q u e s t io n .

6 ERNEST WOODS

7 t e s t i f i e d  as f o l l o w s  o n :

8 INQUIRY

9 BY CHAIRMAN MAC N E IL L E :

10 i Q M r. W oods, a re  you  a t  a l l  co n c e rn e d  a b o u t any r e p r i s a ls

11 a g a in s t  yo u  o r  any co n se q u e n ce s  f o r  y o u r  t e s t i r y i n g

12 to d a y ?  I  t h i n k  th e  C o m m itte e 's  t r y i n g  t o  make s u re

13 t h a t  w itn e s s e s  f e e l  f r e e  t o  come fo r w a r d .

14 A I 'm  n o t  a f r a i d  o f  a n y th in g  l i k e  t h a t .

15 Q O kay, th a n k s .

16 A I 'm  s u re  n o th in g  l i k e  t h a t  w o u ld  happen .

17 HEARING OFFICER: Any f u r t h e r  q u e s t io n s  fro m  anybody?

18 MR. SPAAN: N o t on b e h a l f  o f  th e  C o m m itte e .

19
j

HEARING OFFICER: Thank y o u , s i r ,  f o r  co m ing  i n ,  you
(

20 can  be
i

e x c u s e d .

21 MR. SPAAN: M r. W h ite ,  we c a l l  Ms. McKay, w h o 's  r i g h t

22 o u t  in th e  h a l l .

23 HEARING OFFICER: W ould you  re m a in  s ta n d in g  f o r  a

24 m om ent, p le a s e .  W ould  you  s t a te  y o u r  f u l l  name, p le a s e .

25 MS. MCKAY: L in d a  Suzanne McKay.
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p le a s e .

(O a th  a d m in is te r e d )

MS. MCKAY: I  d o .

HEARING OFFICER: P le a s e  be s e a te d .

MR. JACOBUS: Excuse  me, b e fo r e  Ms. McKay t e s t i f i e s  I

s h o u ld  i d e n t i f y  m y s e l f ,  Ken J a c o b u s , th e  g e n e ra l c o u n s e l f o r  

t h e  R e p u b lic a n  P a r ty  o f  A la s k a .  I 'm  h e re  t o  r e p r e s e n t  Ms. 

M cKay.

HEARING OFFICER: You may be s e a te d  n e x t  t o  h e r  i f  you

l i k e .

LINDA S. MCKAY

c a l le d  as a w itn e s s  on b e h a l f  o f  th e  C o m m itte e , t e s t i f i e s  as 

f o l lo w s  o n :

DIRECT EXAMINATION

HEARING OFFICER: M a'am , w h a t 's  y o u r  m a i l in g  a d d re ss?

A 3190 M a ra th o n  C i r c le ,  99515 .

HEARING OFFICER: Y o u 're  o c c u p a tio n ?

A O f f i c e  m anager f o r  R e p u b lic a n  P a r ty  o f  A la s k a .

HEARING OFFICER: Thank y o u , m a'am . M r. Spaan.

BY MR. SPAAN:

Q Ms. M cKay, good a f te r n o o n ,  how lo n g  have  you  been

em p loyed  as th e  o f f i c e  m anager f o r  th e  R e p u b lic a n

P a r ty ?

A A l i t t l e  o v e r  a y e a r .
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Q And w e re  you  th e  o f f i c e  m anager when th e  R e p u b lic a n

S tra w  P o l l  was h e ld ?

A Y es.

Q And do you  rem em ber how many p e o p le  —  and w h a t was th e

p u rp o s e  o f  t h i s  s t ra w  p o l l  as you u n d e rs to o d  i t ,  Ms. 

McKay?

A The p u rp o s e  o f  th e  s t ra w  p o l l  was t o  c o n d u c t —  t o

r e c e iv e  d e le g a te s  f o r  th e  S ta te  c o n v e n t io n  and t o  have  

p r e s c ie n t  c o m m itte e  woman and man e le c te d .

Q O kay. And was th e r e  a p r e s id e n t i a l  p re fe re n c e  a ls o

in c lu d e d  in  t h is ?

A Yeah. T h e re  was a p r e s id e n t i a l  p re fe re n c e  a ls o .

Q O kay. And how many f o l k s ,  i f  you  rem em ber, s ig n e d  in

j u s t  i n  th e  A n ch o rag e  a re a ?

A O ver f i v e .............

MR. SYREN: O b je c t io n .  T h is  i s  o u ts id e  th e  scope  o f

h e r  k n o w le d g e  u n le s s  she w  s th e r e  t o  w itn e s s  th e  p e o p le  

s ig n in g  i n .

MR. SPAAN: Y our H o n o r, I  t h in k  t h e ..........

HEARING OFFICER: I 'm  g o in g  t o  o v e r r u le  . D id  you

a s k  h e r  how many p e o p le  s ig n e d  in ?

MR. SPAAN: R ig h t .

HEARING OFFICER: Why d o n ' t  you la y  a fo u n d a t io n  i f  she

saw th e  s i g n - in  s h e e t o r ..........

MR. SPAAN: S u re .
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1 HEARING OFFICER: .......... how she knows w h a t y o u 'r e

2 a s k in g •

3 Q D id  th e  P a r ty  ke e p  o r  c o m p ile  a s ig n - in  l i s t  o f p e o p le

4 who a t te n d e d  and p a r t i c i p a t e d  in  th e  s t r a w  p o l l 7

5 MR. SYREN: Same o b je c t io n .

6 HEARING OFFICER: O v e r ru le d .

7 MR. SYREN: E xcuse  me, Y o u r H o n o r, I  d o n ' t  know who

8 j h e 's  t a l k i n g  a b o u t h e r e .  He a ske d  h e r  i f  t h e  P a r ty  and i f  she

9 i s  th e P a r t y ,  t h a t ' s  f i n e ,  she  can answ er t h a t .

10 HEARING OFFICER: You can c ro s s  exam in e  h e re  i f s h e 's

11 t e s t i f y i n g  a b o u t s o m e th in g  she has no kn o w le d g e  a b o u t.

12 - Q Was a s ig n - u p  l i s t  k e p t  o f  th o s e  p e o p le  t h a t

13 p a r t i c i p a t e d  in  A n ch o rag e?

14 | A Y e s .

15 Q And how many p e o p le  p a r t i c i p a t e d  in  A n ch o rag e?

16 A Oh..........

17 MR. SYREN: Same o b je c t io n ,  Y o u r H o n o r.

18 HEARING OFFICER: I 'm  g o in g  t o  s u s ta in  i t  t o  t h a t

19 q u e s t io n .  M r. Spaan, you  can a sk  h e r  how many p e o p le 's names

20 a p p e a r on th e  s ig n - u p  l i s t .

21 Q Do you  have  any kn o w le d g e  r e g a r d in g  how many p e o p le 's

22 names a p p e a re d  on th e  s ig n - u p  l i s t ?

23 A Y es.

24 Q And how many?

25 A O ver 5 ,0 0 0 .
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1 Q And w h a t 's  th e  b a s is  o f  t h a t  kn ow le dg e?

2 A Based on th e  s ig n - in  s h e e ts .

3 Q Was t h i s ,  i n  y o u r  v ie w ,  a s u c c e s s fu l  e v e n t ,  a good  t u r n

4 o u t?

5 MR. SYREN: O b je c t io n ,  Y o u r H o n o r, v a g u e . I  d o n ' t  know

6 w h a t s u c c e s s fu l  i s .  By whose d e f i n i t i o n  w e ' r t  t a l k i n g  a b o u t,

7 R e p u b lic a n  P a r t y ,  h e r  p e r s o n a l ly ,  P e te  H a lg r in ,  i t ' s  j u s t  n o t

8 c le a r .

9 HEARING OFFICER: S u s ta in  i t .  A ls o  as t o  some q u e s t io n

10 as t o  r e le v a n c e .

11 MR. SPAAN: O kay.

12 Q Were s e p a ra te  s ig n - in  s h e e ts ,  Ms. McKay, k e p t  each  f o r

13 each  d i s t r i c t ?

14 | A Yes.

15 Q And a t  one t im e  d id  th e  o f f i c e ,  t o  y o u r  k n o w le d g e , have

16 p o s s e s s io n  o f  th e s e  l i s t s ?

17 A Yes, we d o .

18 \ Q Were th o s e  l i s t s  made a v a i la b le  t o  p e o p le  who w a n ted

19 , a c c e s s  t o  them?

20 | A Yes.

21 ; Q O kay. D id  any members o f  th e  S ta te  L e g is la t u r e  a sk  you

22 f o r  t h i s  l i s t ?

23 j A No.

24 j Q O kay. I 'm  g o in g  t o  hand y o u , Ms. McKay, w h ic h  has been

25 I m arked  as E x h ib i t  5 and ask w h e th e r  you c o u ld  i d e n t i f y
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A T h is  lo o k s  l i k e  some o f  D i s t r i c t  1 9 7s s ig n - in  s h e e ts .

Q O k a y .

MR. SPAAN: I ' d  move 5 i n t o  e v id e n c e .

HEARING OFFICER: I s  th e r e  any o b je c t io n ?

MR. SYREN: F o u n d a t io n .  She s a id  i t  lo o k s  l i k e ,  she

d o e s n ' t  —  she  h a s  no p e rs o n a l kn ow le dg e  o f  w h e th e r i t  was o r  

n o t .  So th e  o b je c t io n  i s  o u ts id e  th e  scope o f  h e r  kn o w le d g e  

and fo u n d a t io n .

MR. SPAAN: Y o u r H o n o r, r e s p e c t f u l l y  I  t h i n k  he c o u ld

—  i f  he t h in k s  t h i s  i s  a p ho ny l i s t ,  t h a t  s h o u ld  be s o m e th in g  

he c o u ld  c r o s s  e xam in e  h e r  a b o u t.  I  mean she s a id  t h i s  —  th e y  

k e p t  th e  l i s t ,  t h i s  lo o k e d  l i k e  th e  l i s t ,  th e  fo u n d a t io n  i s  

t h e r e .

HEARING OFFICER: Ms. McKay, does t h a t  lo o k  l i k e  th e

l i s t  you  saw a t ..........

t h i s  d o c u m e n t .

A Y es. B u t i t  d o e s n ' t  lo o k  l i k e  a l l  o f  them  a re  t h e r e .

HEARING OFFICER: I t  lo o k s  l i k e  th e  l i s t ,  b u t  i t

d o e s n ' t  lo o k  l i k e  i t ' s  c o m p le te ?

A Y es, s i r .

Q L e t  me show you  a n o th e r  c o p y , Ms. McKay and p e rh a p s  we

c o u ld  see  w h e th e r  t h i s  lo o k s  more c o m p le te  f o r  D i s t r i c t  

19 , I 'm  n o t  r e p r e s e n t in g  t h i s  t o  be th e  l i s t  o f  

e v e ry b o d y .
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